
December 20,2006 

‘9L 

ENERGY C 0 OPER AT1 V E 

A Touchstone Energy Coopciative 
0 

Ms. Beth O’Donnell, Executive Director 
Public Service Commission of Kentucky 
21 1 Sower Boulevard 
P. 0. Box 615 
Frankfort, KY 40602 

Re: Case No. 2006-00415 
Application of lnter-County Energy Cooperative Corporation 
For An Adjustment of Rates 

Dear Ms. O’Donnell: 

Please find enclosed the original and ten ( I O )  copies of the Application of Inter-County 
Energy Cooperative Corporation For An Adjustment of Rates, Case No. 2006-0041 5. 

Should you need additional information concerning this filing, please contact this office. 

Since rely, 

ames L. Jacobus 
PresidenVCEO 

JLJ/crl 

CC: Kentucky Attorney General 

P.0 Box 87 Danville, Kentucky 40423-0087 Phoiie (859) 236-4561 1-888-266-7322 Fax (8.59) 236-3627 



In the matter of: 

COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY 
BEFORE THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

ADJUSTMENT OF RATES OF 
INTER COUNTY ENERGY 
COOPERATIVE CORPORATION 

CASE NO. 2006-00415 

A P P L I C A T I O N  

Comes Inter County Energy Cooperative Corporation (hereafter referred to as "Inter County 
Energy" for an Application to change its retail electric power tariffs, states as follows: 

1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5.  

6. 

7. 

Inter County Energy is filing this Application for the purpose of requesting permission from 
the Commission to increase its basic rates effective December 15,2006, in such amounts as are 
set forth herein for all electricity sold. The rates and revenue applied for are considered 
necessary as minimum amounts by Inter County Energy's management and Board of 
Directors for Inter County Energy to maintain its financial integrity and sound operations. 

The full name of Inter County Energy is "Inter County Energy Cooperative Corporation", 
and its address is 1009 Hustanville Road, P.O. Box 87, Danville, Kentucky 40422, (807 KAR 
5:001, Section 8(1)). 

The Articles of Incorporation and all amendments thereto for Inter County Energy were filed 
with the Commission in PSC Case No. 9486, Increase in Retail Rates of Inter County Rural 
Electric Cooperative Corporation (807 KAR S:OOl, Section 8(3)). 

This Application is supported by a 12 month historical test period ending July 3 1 2006, and 
includes adjustments for known and measurable changes (807 KAR 5:001, Section lO(1)). 

Inter County Energy's annual reports, including the annual report for the most recent 
calendar year, are on file with the Commission in accordance with 807 KAR 5:006, Section 
3(1). (807 KAR 5:001, Section 10(l)(a)2.) 

Inter County Energy is not a limited partnership. (807 KAR 5:001, Section 10(l)(a)4.) 

Inter County Energy has filed with this Application a Certificate of Good Standing dated 
within 60 days of the date of this Application. This is filed as South Kentucky Rural Electric's 
Exhibit A. (807 KAR 5:001, Section 10(l)(a)6.) 



8. Inter County Energy does not conduct business under an assumed name and thus no 
Certificate of Assumed Name is needed for this Application. (807 KAR 5:001, Section 
1 O(1 )(a)6.) 

9. Inter County Energy has attached the proposed tariffas Exhibit B. (807 KAR 5:001, 
Section 1 O( l)(a)7.) 

10. Inter County Energy has attached the present and proposed tariffs in comparative form 
shown as Exhibit C. (807 KAR 5:001, Section 10(l)(a)8.) 

1 1. Inter County Energy states that its members have been given notice of the filing of this 
Application in compliance with 807 KAR 5:001, Section 3-lO(3)-(4). A copy is attached 
Exhibit D. (807 KAR 5:001, Section lO(l)(a)9.)as 

12. Inter County Energy states that it provided written notice of its intent to file this rate case 
(Exhibit E) at least four (4) weeks prior to filing this Application, and that the Notice of Intent 
stated that the Application would be supported by a historical test period, which is July 3 1 , 
2006. (807 KAR .5:001, Section lO(2). Inter County Energy's reasons for filing this 
Application to increase its rates and charges pursuant to the requirements of 807 KAR 5:001, 
Section 1 O(l)(s)l, are as follows: 

a. Inter County Energy's last general rate increase was an Order with this Commission 
dated July 28, 1986, in Case No. 9486. Since that time Inter County Energy has 
continued to incur, in addition to specific increases and decreases in the cost of 
power which has been passed on to its customers, other customary increases in the 
costs of materials, equipment, taxes, labor, debt service and other fixed and 
occasional costs. In addition, Inter County Energy has needed to borrow moneys to 
finance its construction projects. 

b. Inter County Energy finds that its financial operations have deteriorated substantially 
over the past few years. Net margins, excluding East Kentucky Power Cooperative's 
capital credit allocation and extraordinary items, have decreased from $1,094,660 in 
2002 to a loss of ($1,374,830) for the test year of July 31,2006. 

c. For the test year ended July 3 1 , 2006, Inter County Energy attained a Times Interest 
Earned Ratio (TIER) of 0.37. For the calendar year of 2005, the TIER was 0.5 1. 
Under terms of its joint mortgage agreement, Inter County Energy is required to 
maintain an operating TIER ratio of 1.25, based on an average of two of the three most 
current years. Unless Inter County Energy is granted the relief it seeks, it stands to 
be in jeopardy on this requirement. Further, it is necessary that it maintains in excess 
of this bare minimum in order to continue its financial integrity. 



d. Inter County Energy's Board of Directors, at a regular meeting held on September 
14,2006, reviewed the Cooperative's current financial situation and the results of its 
operations for the seven (7) months ended and twelve months ended July 3 1,2006. 
After a thorough discussion of the situation, the Board voted unanimously to request 
that the staff of Inter County Energy, and consultants, prepare an increase in retail 
revenues to be filed with the Commission for approval. A resolution adopted by the 
Board of Directors at a meeting on November 17,2006 is included herein as Exhibit F, 
for an increase of $3,991,675. 

13. Inter County Energy has included a complete description and quantified explanation for all 
proposed adjustments with proper support for any changes in price, no changes are 
proposed for activity levels, for its members with the Revenue Analysis shown as Exhibit G. 
(807 KAR 5:001, Section 10(6)(a).) 

14. Inter County Energy has included prepared testimony of each witness the utility proposes to 
use to support its Application. These testimonies are attached as Exhibits H-1 , H-2, and H-3. 
(807 KAR 5:00 1 , Section 10(6)(b).) 

15. Inter County Energy has included a statement showing the effect the new rates will have 
upon the revenues of Inter County Energy including, the total amount of revenues resulting 
from the increase and the percentage of the increase as shown in Exhibit G. (807 KAR 5:001, 
Section 10(6)(d).) 

16. Inter County Energy has included a schedule showing the effect upon the average bill for 
each customer classification to which the proposed increase will apply as Exhibit I. (807 KAR 
5:001 , Section 10(6)(e).) 

17. Inter County Energy has included an analysis of customer's bills in such detail that revenues 
from present and proposed rates can be readily determined for each rate class as the Billing 
Summary and is attached as Exhibit J. (807 KAR 5:001, Section 10(6)(g).) 

18. Inter County Energy has attached a schedule displaying its determination of its revenue 
requirements based on return on net investment rate base, return on capitalization, interest 
coverage, debt service coverage or operating ratio, with supporting schedules as Exhibit K. 
(807 KAR 5:001, Section 10(6)(h).) 

19. Inter County Energy has attached a reconciliation of its rate base and capital used to 
determine its revenue requirements as Exhibit L. (807 KAR 5:001, Section 10(6)(i).) 

20. Inter County Energy has included a current chart of accounts as Exhibit M. (807 KAR 5:001, 
Section 10(6)('j).) 



21. 

22. 

23 * 

24. 

25. 

26. 

27. 

28. 

29. 

30. 

31. 

32. 

Inter County Energy has included the independent auditor’s annual report as Exhibit N. (807 
KAR 5:001 , Section 10(6)(k).) 

Inter County Energy states that the Federal Rural Electric Regulatory Commission or Federal 
Communication Cornmission has not conducted any audits, and therefore, no reports are 
available. (807 KAR 5:001, Section 10(6)(1).) 

Inter County Energy has not had a depreciation study performed either with this application 
or at any time in the past. (807 KAR 5:001, Section 10(6)(n).) 

Inter County Energy has included a list of all commercially available or in-house developed 
computer software programs and models used in the development of this rate application as 
Exhibit 0. (807 KAR 5:001, Section 10(6)(o).) 

Inter County Energy has made no stock or bond offerings. (807 KAR 5:001, Section 10(6)(p).) 

Inter County Energy has attached its annual report to members for 2006 and 2005 as Exhibit 
P. (807 KAR 5:001, Section 10(6)(q).) 

Inter County Energy has included its monthly managerial reports providing financial results 
of operations for the twelve (12) months”in the test period as Exhibit Q. (807 KAR 5:001, 
Section 10(6)(r).) 

Inter County Energy requests a waiver of the requirement for filing Securities and Exchange 
Commission reports because Inter County Energy is not regulated by the SEC. (807 KAR 
5:001, Section 10(6)(s).) 

Inter County Energy has not had any amounts charged or allocated to it by an affiliate or 
general or home office or paid any moneys to an affiliate or general or home office during 
the test period or during the previous three (3) calendar years. (807 KAR 5:001 , Section 
1 O(W).) 

Inter County Energy has included a cost of service study based on a methodology generally 
accepted within the electric industry and based on current and reliable data for the test period 
as Exhibit R. (807 KAR 5:001, Section 10(6)(u).) 

Inter County Energy states that the requirements of 807 KAR 5:001, Section 10(6)(f) and (v) 
are not applicable to Inter County Energy since it is not a local exchange carrier. 

Inter County Energy has filed a detailed income statement and balance sheet reflecting the 
impact of all proposed adjustments for the historical test period as Exhibit S. (807 KAR 5:001, 
Section 10(7)(a).) 



33. Inter County Energy has filed in Case No. 2003-00353 its most recent capital construction 
budget. This case is styled as "Application of Inter County Energy Cooperative for a 
Certificate of Public Convenience and Necessity." (807 KAR 5001 , Section 10(7)(b).) 

34. Inter County Energy states that the requirements of 807 KAR 10(7)(c) for proposed pro forma 
plant additions, are not applicable to Inter County Energy. 

36. In addition to the financial Exhibits required by 807 KAR 5:001, Section 10, financial 
information covering a twelve month historical test period ending July 3 1 , 2006, other 
information required to be filed is as follows: 

Exhibit T 

Exhibit U 

Exhibit V 

Exhibit W 

Exhibit X 

Exhibit Y 

Exhibit Z 

Exhibit 1 

Exhibit 2 

Exhibit 3 

Exhibit 4 

Exhibit 5 

Exhibit 6 

Capitalization policies and Schedule of employee benefits 

Equity Management Plan 

Detailed comparative income statement, statement of cash flows 
and balance sheet. 

Schedule Showing Monthly Comparison of Balance Sheet 
Accounts from Test Year to Preceding Year 

Schedule Showing Monthly Comparison of Income Statement 
Accounts from Test Year to Preceding Year 

Trial balance at end of test year 

Capital Structure 

Adjustment for salaries and wages 

Adjustment for payroll taxes 

Adjustment for depreciation 

Adjustment for property taxes 

Adjustment for long term and short term interest 

Adjustment for postretirement benefits 



Exhibit 7 

Exhibit 8 

Exhibit 9 

Exhibit 10 

Exhibit 11 

Exhibit 12 

Exhibit 13 

Exhibit 14 

Exhibit 15 

Exhibit 16 

Exhibit 17 

Exhibit 18 

Exhibit 19 

Exhibit 20 

Adjustment for retirement costs 

Adjustment for donations 

Adjustment for professional fees 

Adjustment for Director expenses 

Adjustment for miscellaneous expenses 

Adjustment for rate case expenses 

Adjustment for plant disposal 

Adjustment for non-recurring charges 

Adjustment for purchase power 

Adjustment for normalized revenue 

Adjustment for additional revenues 

RTJS Borrower's Statistical Profile 

CFC Key Ratio Trend Analysis 

KAEC Statistical Comparison 



WHEREFORE, Inter County Energy requests that the Public Service Coinniissiori 
approve the increase as expeditiously as possible and issue an order authorizing Inter 
County Energy to made effective those rates. 

Dated at Inter County Energy, Danville, Kentucky this \aTk day of December 
2006. 

Respectfully submitted 

Inter County Energy Cooperative Corporation 

COUNSEL,: 
James William Barnett, Attorney at L,aw 
Sheehan, Barnett, Hays, Dean & Pennington, P.S.C. 
202 Bruce Court 
Danville, Kentucky 40422 

n 

Attorney for Inter County Energy 

I, James L. Jacobus, President & CEO of Inter County Energy, declare that the 
statements contained in he foregoing are true to the best of my infomation arid belief. 

Y 

Inter County Energy 

Y 

Inter County Energy 

Subscribed and sworn to before me by James L,. Jacobus, this If th  day of December, 
2006 

NOPARY PUBL,IC, &ace at Large 

M Y  Coininission Expires: 50 \ )/ 1s , 2 009 . 



ificate of xistence 

I, Trey Grayson, Secretary of State of the Commonwealth of Kentucky, do 
hereby certify that according to the records of the Office of the Secretary of State, 

INTER-COUNTY ENERGY COOPERATIVE CORPORATION 

is a nonprofit corporation duly incorporated arid existing under KRS Chapter 
273, whose date of incorporation is June 14,1937 and whose period of duration 
is perpetual. 

I further certify that all fees and penalties owed to the Secretary of state have 
been paid; that articles of dissolution have not been filed; and that the most 
recent annual report required by KRS 273.3671 has been delivered to the 
Secretary of State. 

IN WITNESS THEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my 
Official Seal at Frankfort, Kentucky, this 14th day of November, 2006. 

Secretary of State 
Commonwealth of Kentucky 
vbennett/0024998 - Certificate ID: 39593 



FOR ENTIRE TERRITORY SERVED 
Community, Town or City 

INTER-COUNTY ENERGY 
(Name of Utility) 

P.S.C. KY. NO. 7 

REVISION #25 SHEET NO. 1 

CANCELLNG P.S.C. KY. NO. 7 

REVISION #24 SHEET NO. 1 

CLASSIFICATION OF SERVICE 

RATES FOR FARM AND HOME SERVICE SCHEDULE 1 

APPLICABLE 
In all territory served by the seller. 

AVAILABILITY 
Effective July 1 , 2004, this Schedule is available to customers for all uses in the home and on the 

farm. All electric service is subject to the established rules and regulations of the seller. Customers 
served under Schedule 1 prior to July I ,  2004, shall remain 011 Schedule 1 and will be subject to the 
availability of service conditions set forth in the Tariff immediately prior to July 1, 2004. 

TYPE OF SERVICE 
Single phase and three phase where available, at available voltages. 

MONTHLY RATE 
Customer Charge 
All over kWh 

$8.00 per meter per month 
$0.07445 per kWh 

I 
I 

MINIMUM CHARGES 
The minimum monthly charge under the above rate shall be $8.00. I 

SPECIAL RULES 
Approval of the cooperative must be obtained prior to the installation of any motor having a 

rated capacity of 10 HP or more. 

DATE OF ISSUE December 19.2006 
Month / Date / Year 

DATE EFFECTIVE January 19.2007 

ISSUED BY 

TITL,E PRESIDENT/CEO 

BY AUTHORITY OF ORDER OF THE PUBLLC SERVICE COMMISSION 

IN CASE NO. DATED 



FOR ENTIRE TERRITORY SERVED 
Community, Town or City 

P.S.C. KY. NO. 7 

REVISION #8 SHEET NO. 1A 

JNTER-COUNTY ENERGY 
(Name of Utility) 

CANCELLING P.S.C. KY. NO. 7 ~ 

REVISION #7 SHEET NO. 1A 

CLASSIFICATION OF SERVICE 

SCHEDULE 1-A FARM AND HOME MARKETING RATE (ETS) 

AVAILABILITY OF SERVICE 
This special marketing rate is available for specific marketing programs as approved by Inter-County 

Energy’s Board of Directors. The electric power furnished under t h s  marketing program shall be 
separately metered for each point of delivery and is applicable during the below off-peak hours. This 
rate is available to customers already receiving service under the Schedule 1, Fann and Home Service 
Rate. This marketing rate appIies only to programs which are expressly approved by the Kentucky 
Public Service Coinmission to be offered under the Marketing Rate of East Kentucky Power 
Cooperative’s Wholesale Power Rate Schedule E, the second (lower) energy rate. 

MONTHS 
May through September 

October through April 

OFF PEAK HOURS - PREVAILING TIME 
1O:OO PM to 1O:OO AM 

12:OO Noon to 5 : O O  PM 
1O:OO PM to 7:OO AM 

RATES 
The energy rate for this program is listed below: 

All kWh $. 04467 I 

TERMS OF PAYMENT 
The customer’s bill will be due the first day of each month. In the event the current monthly bill is not 

paid within fifteen ( I  5 )  days fkom the issuance of the bill, ten percent (1 0%) shall be added to the bill. 

FUEL ADJUSTMENT CLAUSE 

amount per kWh equal to the fuel adjustment amount per kWh as billed by the wholesale power supplier 
plus an allowance for line losses. The allowance for line losses will not exceed ten percent (1 0%) and is 
based on a twelve (1 2) month moving average of such losses. This fuel clause is subject to all other 
applicable provisions as set out in 807 KAR 5:056. 

All rates are applicable to the fuel adjustment clause and may be increased or decreased by an 

DATE OF ISSUE December 19.2006 
Month I Date I Year 

DATE EFFECTIVE Januarv 19.2007 

ISSUED BY 

TITLE PRES 1 DENT/CEO 

BY AUTHORITY OF ORDER OF THE PUBLIC SERVICE. COMMISSION 

IN CASE NO DATELI 



FOR ENTIRE TERRITORY SERVED 
Community, Town or City 

~- P.S.C. KY. NO. 7 

INTER-COUNTY EMZRGY 
(Name of Utility) 

REVISION #25 SHEET NO. 3 

CANCELLING P.S.C. KY. NO. 7 

REVISION #24 SHEET NO. 3 

CLASSIFICATION OF SERVICE 

SMALL COMMERCIAL AND SMALL POWER SCHEDULE 2 

APPLICABLE 
In all territory served by the seller. 

AVAILABILITY 
Available to customers for single phase and three-phase comnercial and industrial loads whose 

kilowatt demand is less than 50 kW for lighting and/or heating and/or power. Effective July 1, 2004, 
Schedule 2 will be available to churches and coininunity buildings. All electric service is subject to the 
established rules arid regulations of the seller. 

TYPE OF SERVICE 
Single phase and three phase where available, 60 Hz at available secondary voltage. 

CHARACTER OF SERVICE 
The electric service furnished under this rate schedule will be 60 Hz, alternating current, single 

phase or three phase service, present facilities permitting, and at the following nominal voltages: single 
phase 120, 120/240,480,240/480 volts; three phase 120/240, 120/208Y, 240/48OY277/480Y volts. 

MONTHLY RATE 
Demand Charges in Excess of 10 kW per month $4.02 per kW. 
Customer Charge $5.55 per meter per month 
All kWh per month $0.06897 per kWh I 

The Customer charge is without k W i  usage. All kWh usage is billed at rates set forth above. 

MINIMUM MONTHLY CHARGE 
The minimum monthly charge under the above rate shall be $5.55. 

DATE OF ISSUE December 19,2006 
Month / Date / Year 

DATE EFFECTIVE January 19.2007 

ISSUED BY 

TITL,E PRESIDENT/CEO 

BY AUTHORITY OF ORDER OF THE PUBL.JC SERVICE COMMJSSION 

IN CASE NO DATED 



FOR ENTIRE TERRITORY SERVED 
Community, Town or City 

P.S.C. KY. NO. 7 

INTER-COUNTY ENERGY 
(Name of Utility) 

REVISION #I2  SHEET NO. 30 

CANCELLING P.S.C. K.Y. NO. 7 

REVISION # I  1 SHEET NO. 30 

CLASSIFICATION OF SERVICE 

LARGE INDUSTRIAL RATE SCHEDULE IND Bd 

APPLICABLE 
Applicable to contracts with demands of 500 to 4,999 kW with a monthly energy usage equal to 

or greater than 400 hours per kW of billing demand. 

MONTHLY RATE 

$5.39 per kW of Contract Demand 
$7.82 per kW of Excess of Contract Demand 

CUSTOMER CHARGE $53 5 .OO 
DEMAND CHARGE 
EXCESS DEMAND CHARGE 

ENERGY CHARGE $0.03648 per kWh I 

BILLING DEMAND 
The billing demand (ICilowatt Demand) shall be the contract demand plus any excess demand. 

Excess demand occurs when the ultimate customer’s highest demand during the current month 
coincident with EI<PC’s system peak (coincident peak), exceeds the contract demand. EICPC’s system 
the peak demand is highest average rate at which energy is used during any fifteen minute interval in the 
below listed hours for each month and adjusted for power factor as provided herein. 

MONTHS 
October through April 

May through September 

HOURS APPLICABLE FOR 
DEMAND BILLING - EST 

7:OO AM to 12:OO Noon 
5:OO PM to 1O:OO I’M 

1O:OO AM to 1O:OO PM 

MINIMUM MONTHLY CHARGE 
The minimum monthly charge shall not be less than the sum of (a), (b), and (c) below: 

(a) The product of the contract demand multiplied by the respective demand charges, plus 

DATE OF ISSUE December 16.2006 

DATE EFFECTIVE Januarv 16,2007 ~- 

ISSUED BY 

Month / Date / Year 

TITLE PRES1 DENT/CEO 

BY AUTHORITY OF ORDER OF THE PUBLJC SERVICE COMMlSSION 

IN CASE NO. DATED 



FOR ENTIRE TERRITORY SERVED 
Community, Town or City 

INTER-COUNTY ENERGY 
(Name of Utility) 

P.S.C. KY. NO. 7 -__- 

REVISION #25 SHEET NO. 10 

CANCELLING P.S.C. KY. NO. 7 

REVISION #24 SHEET NO. 10 

CLASSIFICATION OF SERVICE 

OUTDOOR LIGHTING SERVICE - SECURITY LIGHTS SCHEDULE 6 

AVAILABILITY 
Available to all customers of the cooperative for dusk to dawn outdoor lighting in close proximity to the 

existing overhead and underground 120/240 volt secondary voltage. 

RATE PER LIGHT PER MONTH 
107,800 Lumen Directional Floodlight $3 1.28 per lamp per month 
50,000 Lumen Directional Floodlight $17.0 1 per lamp per month 
27,500 Lumen Directional Floodlight $ 12.16 per lamp per month 
27,500 Lumen Cobra Head $ 1 1.33 per lamp per month 
9,500 Lumen Security Light $ 9.10 per lamp per month 
7,000 Lumen Security Light $ 9.08 per lamp per month 
4,000 Lumen Decorative Colonial Post $ 1 1.53 per lamp per month 
9,550 Lumen Decorative Colonial Post $ 14.84 per lamp per month 

FUEL ADJUSTMENT CLAUSE 

All rates are applicable to the fuel adjustment clause aiid may be increased or decreased by an amount per 
kWh equal to the fuel adjustment amount per kWh as billed by the wholesale power supplier plus an allowance 
for line losses. The allowance for line losses will not exceed 10% aiid is based on a twelve-month moving 
average of such losses. This fuel clause is subject to all other applicable provisions as set forth in 807 KAR 
51056. 

Estimated 1cWh consumptions are as follows: 
107,800 Lumen Light - 360 kWh per month 
50,000 Lumen Light - 159 kWh per month 
27,500 Lumen Light - 87 kWh per month 
9,500 Lumen Light - 39.3 kWhpermonth (N) 
7,000 Lumen Light - 77 kWh per month 
4,000 Lumen Light - 20 kWh per month 
9,550 Lumen Light - 38.3 kWhpermonth (N) 

DATE OF ISSIJE December 16.2006 - 
Month / Date / Year 

DATE EFFECTIVE- Januaw 16,2007 

ISSUED BY - 

TITLE PRESIDENT/CEO 

BY AUTHORITY OF ORDE,R OF THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
IN CASE NO. DATED 



--" For Entire Territory Served 
7 

#6 Sheet No. 20 

Revision #5 Sheet No. 20 

PSC No. _-. 

Cancelling PSC N ~ T '  -- 7 
-- - Inter-County Enerqv Cooperative Revision 

Name of Issuing Corporation 

RULES AND REGULATIONS 

the office of the cooperative within ten ( I O )  days from the date of the bill. Failure to 
receive a bill will not release the customer from the payment obligation. Customer may 
be disconnected for failure to pay or make acceptable payment arrangements upon ten 
(1 0) days written notice of the cooperative's intent to disconnect. However, in no case 
will the customer be disconnected in fewer than twenty-seven (27) days after the mailing 
date of the original bill. 

Should the cooperative travel to the site of the service for the purpose of 
disconnecting the service for non-payment after proper notice, a trip charge of $30.00 
will be assessed the account, provided that the service is actually disconnected or 
payment of the arrearage is made by the customer in order to avoid disconnection. 
The utility will make a field collection charge only once in any billing period. 

In the event the service is disconnected and the cooperative is required to 
travel to the site of the service for the purpose of restoring the service, a $30.00 trip 
fee will be assessed to the account, provided the reconnection trip is made during 
regular working hours. Should reconnection be requested at times other than regular 
working hours, the reconnect trip fee will be $65.00. 

12. Meter Reading- Each customer receiving service will be required to s q p l y  the 
cooperative with the reading of each meter in his name until such time that the 
cooperative no longer requires a reading from the member. The meter shall be read on 
the first day of each month and the reading returned to the cooperative's office prior 
to the 10th day of each month. Upon failure by the customer to supply the cooperative 
with such meter readings for three (3) consecutive months, the cooperative will read 
customer's meter and a service charge of $30.00 will be made to the customer's 
account for the extra service rendered. 
13. Failure of Meter to Reqister: In the event a customer's meter should fail to register, 
the customer shall be billed from the date of such failure at the average consumption of 
the customer, based on like months. 
14. Discontinuance of Service bLsooperative : The cooperative may refuse or 
discontinue service to any customer, after proper notice for failure to comply with its 
rules and regulations or state and municipal rules and regulations, when a customer 
refuses or 

A service fee of $25.00 will charged for each returned check. 

DATE OF ISSUE December 19,2006 DATE EFFECTIVE January 19,2007 

ISSUE BY TITLE: CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 



For Entire Territory Served - .-" - -- "-.-I_- 
PSC No. 7 

I n te r- Co u n tv E nerg v Cooperative- 
Name of Issuing Corporation 

Revision #6 SheetNo. 21 
Cancellina PSC No. 7 " 

Revision - #5 SheetNo. 21 

RULES AND REGULATIONS 

neglects to provide reasonable access to the premises, for fraudulent or illegal use 
of services, or for nonpayment of bills. When a dangerous condition is found to exist 
on the customer's premises, service shall be cut off without notice or refused. If 
discontinuance is for nonpayment of bills, the customer shall be given at least ten ( I O )  
days written notice, separate from the original bill and cut off shall be effective no less 
than 27 days after the mailing of original bill unless prior to discontinuance, a residential 
customer presents to the cooperative a written certificate, signed by a physician, 
registered nurse or public health office, that such discontinuance will aggravate an 
existing illness or infirmity on the affected premises, in which case discontinuance may 
be effected not less than thirty (30) days from the date the cooperative notifies the 
customer, in writing, of state and federal programs which may be available to aid in 
payment of bills and the office to contact for such possible assistance. All such 
disconnects will be made in accordance with 807 KAR 5:006, Section 14. 
15. Reconnect Charge: When service has been discontinued by cooperative, for a 

collected by cooperative before service is restored during regular working hours. 
Should the above mentioned service be required at times other than regular working 

16. Termination of Contract bv Customer: A customer who has fulfilled his contract 
terms and wishes to discontinue service must give at least three (3) days notice in 
writing, in person or by telephone to that effect, unless contract specifies otherwise. 
Notice to discontinue service prior to expiration of contract term will not relieve 
customer from any minimum or guaranteed payment under any contract or rate. 
17. Service Charges for Temporary Service : A customer requesting electric service 
for a period not exceeding ninety (90) days will be required by cooperative to pay a 

service. Cooperative will meter the service and charge for the demand and the kWh 
that are used on the applicable rates. This rule applies to circuses, carnivals, fairs, 
temporary construction, temporary mobile homes and the like. 

period of twelve (12) months or less for any reason, a charge of $30.00 dollars may be 

hours, this charge will be sixty-five ($65.00) dollars. 

I 

I 

a temporary service charge equal to $95.00 dollars to connect and to remove the N 

DATE OF ISSUE December 19,2006 DATE EFFECTIVE January 19,2007 

ISSUE BY TITLE: CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICE3B 



- - - . - ~  - ---._ For Entire Territory Served -- 

I n t e r- Co u n t y E n  e rq v Coo per at ive 
Name of Issuing Corporation 

- PSC No. 7. 
Revision #6 SheetNo. 23 

7 Cancelling PSC No. - 
Revision #5 Sheet No. 23 

RULES AND REGULATIONS 

25. Meter Test: The cooperative will, at its own expense, make periodic test and 
inspection of its meters in order to maintain a high standard of accuracy. The 
cooperative will make additional tests or inspections of its meters at the request of 
customer. If such test shows that the meter is accurate within 2%, slow or fast, no 

per meter will be paid by customer. If the test determines the meter to be in excess of 
2% slow or fast, an adjustment will be made in the customer's account in accordance 
with 807 KAR 5:006, Section IO, 18. 

adjustment will be made in customer's bill and the testing charge of forty ($40) dollars i 

26. -u.ormal Distribution Line Extensions-: An extension of 1,000 feet or less of single 
phase line shall be made by the cooperative to its existing distribution line without 
charge for a prospective customer who shall apply for and contract to use the service 
for one ( I )  year or more and provides guarantee for such service, The "service drop" 
to the customer from the distribution line at the last pole shall not be included in the 
foregoing measurements. Extension of service to a customer who may require 
polyphase service may require the customer to pay in advance additional cost of 
canstruction which exceeds that for a single phase line. 

When an extension of the cooperative's line to serve an applicant or group 
or applicants amounts to more than 1,000 feet per customer, the cooperative may, if 
not inconsistent with the filed tariff, require the total cost of the excessive footage over 
1,000 feet per customer to be deposited with the cooperative by the applicants, 
based on the average estimated cost per foot of the total extension. 

under the following plan: Each year for a period of not less than ten (IO) years, 
which for the purpose of this rule shall be the refund period, the cooperative shall 
refund to the customer or customers who paid for the excessive footage the cost of 
1,000 feet of the extension in place for each additional customer connected during 
the year whose service line is directly connected to the extension installed and not 
to extensions or laterals there from, but in not case shall the total amount refunded 

Each customer receiving service under such extension will be reimbursed 

DATE OF ISSUE December 19,2006 DATE EFFECTIVE Januarv 19,2007 
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REVISION #23 SHEET NO. 1 

CLASSIlFICATXON OF SERVICE 

RATES FOR FARM AND HOME SERVICE SCHEDULE 1 

APPLICABLE 
In all territory served by the seller. 

AVAILABILITY 
Effective July 1,2004, this Schedule is available to customers for all uses in the home and on the 

farm. All electric service is subject to the established rules and regulations of the seller. Customers 
served under Schedule 1 prior to July 1, 2004, shall remain on Schedule 1 and will be subject to the 
availability of service conditions set forth in the Tariff immediately prior to July 1,2004. 

TYPE OF SERVICE 
Single phase and three phase where available, at available voltages. 

r 
MONTHLY RATE 

,-er meter per month e',o;1 Customer Charge 
F- -kw 

1 - p - &  $8584344gef-W 
L 9 e ~ 3 - 1  GL-ar$a: 

The minimum monthly charge under the above rate shall be $555. 4 g .D  o 

d, \  C C J ~  p,erm-os-Mr/ MINZMUMCHARGES # & ? *  073c15 3 
7 
d 

\ 

L 
--., 

* SPECIAL RULES 
Approval of the cooperative must be obtained prior to the installation of any motor having a 

rated capacity of 10 €-€P or more. 
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- - ~ ~ -  CLASSIFICATION OF SERVICE 
____I ~- 

SCHEDULE 1-A FARM AND HOME MARI(ETTNG RATE (ETSI 

AVAILABILITY OF SERVICE 
This special marketing rate is available for specific marketing programs as approved by Inter-County 

Energy’s Board of Directors. The electric power fiunished under this marketing program shall be 
separately metered for each point of delivery and is applicable during the below off-peak hours. This 
rate is available to customers already receiving service under the Schedule 1 Farm and Home Service 
Rate. This marketing rate applies only to programs which are expressly approved by the Kentucky 
Public Service Commission to be offered under the Marketing Rate of East Kentucky Power 
Cooperative’s Wholesale Power Rate Schedule E, the second (lower) energy rate. 

MONTHS > OFF PEAK HOURS - PREVAILING TrPvZE 
May through Sepxember 1O:OO PM to 1O:OO AM 

October through April 1200 Noon to 5:OO PM 
1O:OO PM to 7:OO AM 

RATES 
The energy rate for tkis program is listed below: 

4 0. 0 .)rld7 I All l cwh  -- 
TERMS OF PAYMENT 

The customer’s bill will be due the first day of each month. In the event the current monthly bill is not 
paid within fifteen 0 5) days from the issuance of the bill, ten percent (1 0%) shall be added to the bill. 

FUEL ADJUSTMENT CLAUSE 

amount per kWh equal to the k e l  adjustment mount  per kWh as billed by the wholesale power supplier 
plus an allowance for line losses. The allowance for line losses will not exceed ten percent (10%) and is 
based on a twelve (1 2) month moving average of such losses. This fuel clause is subject to all other 
applicable provisions as set out in 807 KAR 5:056. 

All rates are applicable to the fuel adjustment clause and may be increased or decreased by an 

~ \ ~ c ~ r n f i ~ i r  le- 6 I 1 
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CLASSIFICATION OF SERVICE 

SMALL COMMERCLAL AND SMALL POWER SCHEDULE 2 

APPLICABLE 
In all territory served by the seller. 

AVAILABILITY 
Available to customers for single phase and three-phase commercial and industrial loads whose 

kiIowatt demand is less than 50 kW for lighting and/or heating andor power. Effective July 1, 2004, 
Schedule 2 will be available to churches and community buildings. All electric service is subject to the 
established rules and regulations of the seller. 

TYPE OF SERVICE 
Single phase and three phase where available, 60 Hz at available secondary voltage. 

CRARACTER OF SERVICE 
The electric service furnished under this rate schedule will be 60 Hz, alternating current, single 

phase or three phase service, present facilities permitting, and at the following nominal voltages: single 
phase 120, 120/240,480,240/480 volts; three phase 120/240, 120/208Y, 240/480, 277/480Y volts. 

MONTHLY RATE 
Demand Charges in Excess of 10 kW per month $4.02 per kW. 
Customer Cfiarge $5.55 per meter per month 
F- $- .-m 
pbeF+w0--wm& $B;oB53Bperlrwlr 

4 0 .  Q b641  7- derdq cha, t G Q : 
A \ \  ~ C C W \ . I  per ~ 0 d . r . k  

The Customer charge is without kWh usage. All kWh usage is billed at rates set forth above. 

MINIMUM R'IONTRLY CHARGE 
The rninimurn monthly charge under the above rate shall be $5.55. 

Executive Director 
BY AUTHORITY OF ORDER OF THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
INCASENO. DATED MAY 24,2005 

20;6,. 07+( - r  .=-TGCEIL?fi!a I 2  Z P t ,  4. 
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CLASSIF'XGATXON OF SERVICE _____-___--- - 
LARGE INDUSTRIAL RATE SCHXDULE IND B1 

APPLICABLE 
Applicable to contracts with demands of 500 to 4,999 kW with a monthly energy usage equal to 

or greater than 400 hours per 1W of billing demand. 

MONTHLY RATE 

$5.39 per 1cW of Contract Demand 
$7.82 per kW of Excess of Contract Demand 

CIJSTOMER CHARGE $535.00 
DEMAND CHARGE 
EXCESS DEMAND CHARGE 

BILLING DERZPlND 
The billing demand ('Kilowatt Demand) shall be the contract demand plus any excess demand. 

Excess demand occurs when the ultimate customer's highest demand during the cment month 
coincident with EKPC's system peak (coincident peak), exceeds the contract demand. EWC's system 
the peak demand is highest average rate at which energy is used during any fiReen minute interval in the 
below listed hours for each month and adjusted for power factor as provided herein. 

WIONTHS 
October through April 

May through September 

HOURS APPLICABLE FOR 
DEMAND BILLING - EST 

7:OO AM to 12:OO Noon 
5:OO PM to 10:OO PM 

1O:OO AM to 1O:OO PM 

MINaMuM MONTHLY CHARGE 
The minimum monthly charge shall not be less than the sum of (a), (b), and (c) below: 

(a) The product of the contract demand muItipIied by the respective demand charges, plus 

b l = c c m f ! a  (4-  -2- c 
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CLASSIFICATION OF SERVICE 

OUTDOQR LIGHTING SERVICE - SECURITY LIGHTS SCHEDULE 6, 

AVMLABILITY 
Available to all customers of the cooperative for dusk to dawn outdoor lighting in close proximity to the 

existing overhead and underground 120/240 volt secandary voltage. 

RATE PER LIGHT-PER MONTH 
107,800 Lumen Directional Floodlight 
50,000 Lumen Directional Floodlight 
27,500 Lumen Directional Floodlight 
27,500 Lumen Cobra Head 
9,500 Lumen Security Light 
7,000 Lumen Security Light 
4,000 Lumen Decorative Colonial Post 
9,550 Lumen Decorative Colonial Post 

$22% per lamp per month b 3\ . 28  
Si?+% per lamp per month 
-$-&%&per lamp per month $ r2.th 
M p e r  lamp per month SF I J 

"$-&@+per lamp per month (N) e 9. fo 

$-&6jBger lamp per month p 9.0s 
$ -@&per lamp per month -F I I .  1. 3 
" B - p e r  lamp per month (N)' 9 B+ 

17. O I  

FUEL ADJUSTMENT CLAUSE 
All rates are applicable to the fuel adjustment clause and may be increases or decreased by an amount per 

kWh equal to the fuel adjustment amount per kWh as billed by the wholesale power supplier PIUS an allowance 
for line losses. The allowance for h e  losses will not exceed 10% and is based on a twelve-month moving 
average of such losses. This fuel clause is subject to all other applicable provisions as set forth in 807 KAR 
5:056. 

Estimated kWh consumptions are as foIlows: 

107,800 Lumen Light - 360 kWh per month 
50,000 Lumen Light .. 159 kWh per month 
27,500 Lumen Light - 87 kWh per month 
9,500 Lumen Light - 39.3 kWhpermonth (N) 
7,000 Lumen Light - 77 k W h  per month 
4,000 Lumen Light - 20 k w h  per month 
9,550 Lumen Light - 38.3 kWh permonth (N) 
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the office of the cooperative within ten (10) days from the date of 
the bill. Failure to receive a bill will not, release the customer 
from the payment. obligation. Customer may be disconnected f o r  
failure to pay o r  make acceptable payment arrangements upon ten 
(10) days written notice of the cooperative‘s intent to disconnect. 
However, -in no case will the customer be disconnected in fewer than 
twenty-seven (27) days after the mailing date of the original bill. 

Should the cooperative travel to the site of the service for 
the purpose of disconnecting the s for non-payment after 
proper notice, a trip charge of will be assessed the 
account, provided that the service is actually disconnected or 
payment of the arrearage is made by the customer in order to avoid 
disconnection. The utility will make a field collection charge 
only once in any billing period. 

In the event the service is disconnected and the cooperative 
is required to travel to t 
restoring the service, a ip fee will be assessed to the 
account, provided the reconnection trip is made during regular 
working hours. Should reconnection be requested at times other 
than regular working hours, the reconnect trip fee will be sss-;e-O. 6 0 8  2 

A service fee of $ will be charged for each returned 

f the service for the purpose of 3 (- 

check. ?g%@-- 

I ’  

\... 

12. Me.- R e a d i n g ,  Each customer receiving service will be 
required to supply the cooperative with the reading of each meter 
in his name until such time that the cooperative no longer fequires 
a reading from the member. The meter shall be read on the first 
day of. each month and the reading returned to the cooperative‘s 
office prior to the 10th of each month. Upon failure by the , 
customer to supply the cooperative with such meter readings for 
three (3) consecutive months, the cooperative wi.lI read the 
customer‘s meter and a service charge of will be made to the 
customer‘s account for the extra servic .c--c- 

13.  m u r e  of Meter to Resister : In the event, a cust.omer’s meter 
should fail to register, the customer shall be billed from the date 
of such failure at, the average consumption of the customer, based 
on like months. 
14. 
refuse or discontinue service to any customer, after proper not+j+pVE 
for failure to comply with its rules and regulations or state an 
municipal rules and regulations, when a customer refuses or 
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neglects  t o  provide reasonable access t o  t h e  premises, f o r  
fraudulent o r  i l l e g a l  use of service,  o r  f o r  nonpayment of b i l l s .  
When a dangerous condition i s  found t o  e x i s t  on the customer's 
premises, se rv ice  s h a l l  be cut off without no t ice  o r  refused. I f  
discontinuance i s  f o r  nonpayment of b i l l s ,  t h e  customer sha l l  be 
given a t  l e a s t  t en  ( 1 0 )  days w r i t t e n  not ice ,  separate  from the  
or iginal  b i l l ,  and cut off sha l l  be e f fec ted  not less than 2 7  days 
a f t e r  t h e  mailing of o r ig ina l  b i l l  unless p r i o r  t o  discontinuance, 
a resident. ia1 custamer presents t o  the  cooperative a w r i t t e n  
c e r t i f i c a t e ,  signed by a physician, reg is te red  n u r s e  o r  public 
health of f ice ,  t h a t  such discontinuance w i l l  aggravate an ex i s t ing  
i l l n e s s  o r  in f i rmi ty  on the  affected premises, i n  which case 
discontinuance may be effected not less than t h i r t y  ( 3 0 )  days from 
t h e  da te  t h e  cooperative n o t i f i e s  t he  customer, i n  wri t ing,  of 
s t a t e  and federal  programs which may be avai lable  t o  a id  i n  payment 
of b i l l s  and the  o f f i c e  t o  contact f o r  such poss ib le  ass is tance.  
A l l  such disconnects w i l l  be made i n  accordance w i t h  8 0 7  KAR 5 : 0 0 6 ,  
Section 1 4 .  
15. W c t  C M f l  -e: When service has been discontinued by 
cooperative, f o r  a period of twelve (12) months o r  l e s s  f o r  any 

( -  

dol la rs  may be co l lec ted  by c o o p e r a t i v e x  
before  service i s  during regular  workhg hours. Should 

I reason, a charge of 

t h e  above mentioned service be required a t  times other than regular- 
J- working hours, t h i s  charge w i l l  be f i f t y  (-$&Q 

1 6 .  -on of -= P c u s t o m e r  who has 
f u l f i l l e d  h i s  contract, terms and wishes t o  discontinue service must 
give a t  l e a s t  t h ree  ( 3 )  days notice i n  wri t ing,  i n  person or by 
telephone t o  t h a t  e f f e c t ,  unless contract  spec i f i e s  otherwise. 
Notice t o  discontinue service p r io r  t o  expirat ion of contract  term 
w i l l  n o t  r e l i eve  customer from any m i n i m u m  o r  guaranteed payment 
under any contract  o r  r a t e .  
1 7 .  Service C h a n ~ e s  f o r  Temporary S e  )-vi c e ~  A customer requesting 
e l e c t r i c  service for  a period not. exceeding ninety ( 9 0 )  day w i l l  be 
required by cooperative t o  pay a% z~L;-+P *cr C- 

11 I11 a service.  
Cooperative w i l l J r g e  f o r  t h e  demand and 
t h e  kWh t h a t  a r e  used on t h e  applicable r a t e s .  This r u t  ISSIC 
t o  c i rcuses  , carn iva ls ,  f a i r s ,  temporary construction 
mobile homes and t h e  l i k e .  o r b r y  3ervVjce c 
$D dqsoo dd116rs +Q COMC.~~G+ - f A  P G - ~  $-dez 

o l l a r s .  

h/ 

( C )  

1 
=?"r 

! I )  I 
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25. Meter T e s t  L The cooperative will, at its own expense, make 
periodic test and inspection of its meters in order to maintain a 
high standard of accuracy. The cooperative will make additional 
tests or inspections of its meters at the request of customer. If 
such test shows that the meter is accurate within 2%, slow or fast, 
no adjustment will be made in customer's bill and the testing 

If the test determines the meter to be in excess of 2% slow or fast 
an adjustment will be made in the customer's account in accordance 
with 807 KAR 5:006, Section 10, 18. 
26.Normal I 3 s - u  * An extension of 1,000 feet 
or less of single phase line shall be made by the cooperative to 
its existing distribution line without charge for a prospective 
customer who shall apply for and contract to use the service for 
one (1) year or more and provides guarantee for such service. The 
"service drop" to the customer from the distribution line at the 
last pole shall not be included in the foregoing measurements. 
Extension of service to a customer who may require polyphase (C) 
service may require the customer to pay in advance additional cost 
of construction which exceeds that f o r  a single phase line. 

When an extension of the cooperative's line to serve an 
applicant or group of applicants amounts to more than 1,000 feet. 
per customer, the cooperative may, if not inconsistent with its 
filed tariff, require the total cost of the excessive footage over 
1,000 feet per customer to be deposited with the cooperative by the 
applicants, based on the average estimated cost per foot. of the 
total extension. 

Each customer receiving service under such extension will be 
reimbursed under the following plan: Each year for a period of 
not less than t-en (10) years, which for the purpose of this rule 
shall be the refund period, the cooperative shall refund to the 
customer or customers who paid for the excessive footage the cost 
of 1,000 feet of the extension in place for each addit,ional 
customer connected during the year whose service line is directly 
connected to the extension installed and not to extensions or 
laterals therefrom, but in no case shall the total amount refunded 

charge of ten (&b$llars per meter will be paid by customer. 5- 

(C) 

4 

.n 

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5.01 1, 
SECTON 9 (1 1 
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Inter County Energy Cooperative Exhibit C 

Witness: Alan Zumstein 
Case No. 2006-004 15 

Existing and Proposed Rates and Charges 
July 3 1,2006 

page / o f 2  

Rates Present 

Schedule 1, Farm and Home 

First 500 kwh per month 
All over 500 kwh per month 

Customer charge $555 
$0.06900 
$0.06366 

Energy charge per ETS $0.03820 

Schedule 2, Small Commercial and Small Power 

Demand charge $4.02 
First 1,000 kwh per month $0.07825 
All over 1,000 kwh per month $0.06576 

a Customer charge $5.55 

Schedule 4, Lawe Power Rate 

Demand charge $4.02 
Energy charge $0.05655 

Customer charge $11.10 

Schedule 5, All Electric Schools 

Energy charge $0.05884 
Customer charge $0.00 

Schedule Ind B1, Large Industrial Rate 
Metering charge $535.00 
Demand charge 

Contract demand $5.39 
Excess demand $7.82 

Interuptible discount ($3.15) 
Energy charge $0.03532 

Proposed Difference 

$8.00 $2.45 
$0.0744 5 $0.00545 
$0.07445 $0.0 1079 

$0.04467 $0.00647 

$5.55 $0.00 
$4.02 $0.00 

$0.06897 ($0.00928) 
$0.06897 $0.00321 

$1 1.10 $0.00 
$4.02 $0.00 

$0.05655 $0.00000 

$0.00 $0.00 
$0.05884 $0.00000 

$535.00 $0.00 

$5.39 $0.00 
$7.82 $0.00 

($3.15) $0.00 
$0.03648 $0.001 16 
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Inter County Energy Cooperative 
Case No. 2006-004 15 

Existing and Proposed Rates and Charges 
July 3 1,2006 

Rates Present Proposed 

Schedule Ind C1. Laree Industrial Rate 
Metering charge $535.00 $535.00 

Energy charge $0.03565 $0.03565 
Demand charge $5.39 $5.39 

Schedule 6, Outdoor Lightin? Service-Security LiEhts 
107,800 Lamen Directional Floodligl $22.95 
50,000 Lumen Directional Floodligh $12.48 
27,500 Lumen Directional Floodligl $8.92 
27,500 Lumen Cobra Head $8.3 1 

9,500 Lumen Security Light $6.68 
7,000 Lumen Security Light $6.66 
4,000 L,urnen Decorative Colonial $8.46 
9,550 Lumen Decorative Colonial $10.89 

$3 1.28 
$17.01 
$12.16 
$1 1.33 

$9.10 
$9.08 

$1 1.53 
$14.84 

Exhibit C 
page2of 4 

Witness: Alan Zurnstein 

Difference 

$0.00 
$0.00 

$0.00000 

$8.33 
$4.53 
$3.24 
$3.02 
$2.42 
$2.42 
$3.07 
$3.95 



The present and proposed rate structure of Inter County Energy Cooperative are 
listed below: 

Rates 
Rate Class 

Schedule 1 and 1-A 
Customer charge 
All kwh per month 
First 500 kwh per month 
All over 500 kwh per month 
Energy charge per ETS 
Schedule 2 
Customer charge 
Demand charge 
All kwh per month 
First 1,000 kwh per month 
All over 1,000 kwh per month 
Schedule 4 
Customer charge 
Demand charge 
Energy charge 
Schedule 5 
Customer charge 
Energy charge 
Schedule B1 
Customer charge 
Demand charge 

Contract demand 
Excess demand 

Interuptible discount 
Energy charge 
Schedule C1 
Customer charge 
Demand charge 
Energy charge 
Schedule OL 
107,800 Lumen Directional Floodlight 
50,000 Lumen Directional Floodlight 
27,500 Lumen Directional Floodlight 
27,500 Lamen Cobra Head 

9,500 Lumen Security Light 
7,000 Lumen Security Light 
4,000 Lumen Decorative Colonial Post 
9,550 Lamen Decorative Colonial Post. 

Return check 
Meter reading 
Collection 
Reconnect 
Meter test 
Temporary service 
Overtime 

Non Recurring Charges 

Present 

$5.55 

$0.06900 
$0.06366 
$0.03820 

$5.55 
$4.02 

$0.07825 
$0.06576 

$11.10 
$4.02 

$0.05655 

$0.00 
$0.05884 

$535.00 

$5.39 
$7.82 

($3.15) 
$0.03.532 

$535.00 
$5.39 

$0.03565 

$22.95 
$12.48 
$8.92 
$8.3 1 
$6.68 
$6.66 
$8.46 

$10.89 

$10.00 
$10.00 
$22.00 
$22.00 
$10.00 
$60.00 
$50.00 

- 

- 

Proposed 

$8.00 
$0.07445 

- 

$0.04467 

$5.55 
$4.02 

$0.06897 
- 
- 

$11.10 
$4.02 

$0.05655 

$0.00 
$0.05884 

$53.5.00 

$5.39 
$7.82 

($3.15) 
$0.03648 

$535.00 
$5.39 

$0.03565 

$3 1.28 
$17.01 
$12.16 
$11.33 
$9.10 
$9.08 

$1 1.53 
$14.84 

$25.00 
$30.00 
$30.00 
$30.00 
$40.00 
$9.5.00 
$65 .OO 



The effect of the proposed rates on the average monthly bill by rate class 
are listed below: 

Increase 
Rate Class 

Schedule 1 

Schedule 2 

Schedule 4 

Schedule 5 

Schedule Ind B1 

Schedule Ind C1 

Schedule 6 

Non Recurring Charges 

Farm and Home 

Small Commercial and Small Power 

Large Power Rate 

All Electric Schools 

Large Industrial Rate 

L,arge Industrial Rate 

Outdoor Lighting Service 

Return check 
Meter reading 
Collection 
Reconnect 
Meter test 
Temporary service 
Overtime 

Dollar 

$13.21 

($0.0 0) 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$438.46 

$0.00 

$2.52 

$15 
$20 
$8 
$8 

$30 
$3 5 
$15 

Percent 

15% 

-0% 

0% 

0% 

2% 

0% 

3 6% 

150% 
200% 

3 6% 
36% 

58% 
300% 

30% 



INTER (&hm e - 
ENER GY C 0 OPER AT1 V E  

September 18,2006 

Beth A. O’Donnell, Executive Director 
K.entucky Public Service Commission 
21 1 Sower Blvd. 
P.O. Box 615 
Frankfort, Kentucky 40602 

Dear Ms. O’Donnell: 

This is to advise, in accordance with the Commission’s Administrative Regulation 807 KAR 
5:001, Section 1 1(2), that on or about November 15,2006, Inter County Energy Cooperative 
(hereafter Inter County Energy) intends to file an application for an increase in its retail 
rates based on a historical test year ending July 3 1,2006. 

If there are any questions concerning this matter, please contact me at your convenience. 

Respectfully submitted, 

James L. Jacobus, President & CEO 

copy to: 
Attorney General 
Utility Intervention and Rate Division 
1024 Capital Center Drive 
Frankfort, Kentucky 4060 1 

P.O. Box 87 e Danville, Kentucky 40423-0087 e Phone (859) 236-4561 e 1-888-266-7322 e Fax (859) 236-3627 



Ernie Fletcher 
Governor 

LaJuana S .  Wilcher, Secretary 
Environmental a n d  Public 
Protection Cabinet 

Christopher I_. Lilly 
Commissioner  
Department of Public Protection 

Commonwealth of Kentucky 
Public Service Commission 

21 1 Sower Blvd. 
P.O. Box 615 

Frankfort, Kentucky 40602-0615 
Telephone: (502) 564-3940 

Fax: (502) 564-3460 
psc.ky gov 

James L. Jacobus September 21 , 2006 
President/CEO 
Inter-County Energy Cooperative Corporation 
1009 Hustonville Road 
P. 0. Box 87 
Danville, KY 40423-0087 

Mark David G o s s  
Chairman 

Teresa J. Hill 
Vice Chairman 

INTER-COUI\ITY ENEEGY 
R EC E i \/ED 

SEP 2 2 2006 
OFFICE OF FRESIDEN? / CEO 

RE: Case No 2006-00415 
Inter-County Energy Cooperative Corporation 
(General Rates) 
Notice of intent to file rate application 

This letter is to acknowledge receipt of notice of intent to file an application in the  above 
case. The notice was date-stamped received September 21 , 2006 and has been assigned 
Case No 2006-00415. In all fu tu re  correspondence or filings in connection with this case, 
please reference the  above case number. 

If you need fur ther  assistance, please contact my staff at (502) 564-3940. 

S in ce rely, 

Beth O'Donneil 
Executive Director 

BOD/sh 

Ke n i u d t y i i n  bridle JSpir % c om 



INTER-COUNTY ENERGY 
COOPERATIVE CORPORATION 

"A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF INTER-COUNTY 
ENERGY COOPERATIVE CORPORATION AUTHORIZING AXID 

DIRECTING ITS PRESIDENT/CEO TO FILE WITH THE KEWI'UCKY 
PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION FOR A FLATE INCREASE OF 

APPROXIMATELY $3 991 675. 

WHEREAS, 

WHEREAS, 

WHEREAS, 

WHEREAS , 

Inter-County Energy Cooperative Corporation 
(Inter-County Energy) has applied for a general 
rate increase in 1986; and 

since the last application for a rate increase, 
approximately twenty (20) years ago, various 
expenses of Inter-County Energy have increased 
substantially; and 

to provide its members with a reliable source of 
power it is the opinion of the Board of Directors 
of Inter-County Energy that a rate increase is 
necessary to maintain Inter-County Energy in a 
sound financial condition; and 

the Board of Directors of Inter-County Energy 
hereby authorizes and directs its President/CEO, 
James L. Jacobus, to file with the Kentucky 
Public Service Commission for a rate increase in 
the amount of approximately $3,991,675; 

BE IT THEREFORE RESOLVED that this resolution was 
properly authorized and adopted on behalf of 
Inter-County Energy by the Board of Directors 
during the regular monthly Board of Directors 
meeting held November 17, 2006. 

Corporate Seal 

ATTEST : 

Paul d. Baliard, Chairman 

UJames K. Preston, Sec/Treas 
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Tnter County Energy Cooperative 
Case No. 2006-004 15 

Explanation of Changes in Charges 
July 3 1 , 2006 

Exhibit G 
page 2 of 2 

Witness: Jiinii Jacobus 

All revenues were normalized using rates that went into effect in connection with a flow 
through of East Kentucky Power Cooperative's increase in rates in EKPC Case No. 2004- 
00467 and Inter County Energy's flow through Case No. 2004-00482, effective June 1,2005. 

The proposed rate increase was allocated based on the Cost of Service Study (COSS) 
that is included as Exhibit R to this Application. The increase has been further allocated to 
rate schedules as follows: 

Schedule 1. Farm and Home 
The Customer Charge was increase from $5.55 to $8.00, with the remaining increase 
assigned to the Energy Charge. The step rate for the first 500 kwh per month was 
eliminated. Inter County Energy proposes to have one flat rate for all kwh usage. 

The COSS resulted in justification for a larger increase in the Customer Charge, however, 
Inter County Energy elected to keep the increase in the Customer Charge more gradual 
than what was reflected in the COSS. 

Schedule 2, Small Commercial and Small Power 
The step rate for the first 1,000 kwh per month was eliminated. The new rate is revenue 
neutral for this rate class. 

Schedule Ind B1, Large Industrial Rate 
The entire increase was assigned to the Energy Charge. 

OL. STL and DSTL, All Lighting 
All increases were based on the COSS. 

All Customer Charges were established in Inter County Energy's last general rate increase, 
Case No. 9486, dated July 28, 1986. These charges were ordered by the Kentucky 
Commission based on the Cost of Service Study filed with that general rate increase. A copy 
of that study is on file in that Case, noted by reference. 

Inter County Energy does not have monthly peak demands for rate schedules, only the 
amount of K.W billed to each consumer. 
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COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY 

BEFORE THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

In the Matter of: 

ADJUSTMENT OF RATES OF 

COOPERATIVE CORPORATION 
INTER-COUNTY ENERGY CASE NO. 2006-00415 

PREPARED TESTIMONY OF JAMES L. JACOBUS 

Q1. 

A l .  

42 .  

A2. 

43 .  

A3. 

Q4. 

A4. 

QS * 

A5. 

Would you please state your name and business address? 

James L. Jacobus, Post Office Box 87, Danville, Kentucky 40423-0087 

What is your occupation? 

PresidenKEO of Inter-County Energy Cooperative Corporation (Lnter-County Energy) 

How long have you been in your present position? 

Approximately 7 % years. 

What is your professional background? 

I obtained both a Bachelor Degree in Agriculture and Master Degree in Education from 
the IJniversity of Kentucky. I served as an instructor for Vocational Agricultural at 
Garrard County High School from 1978-1983. After a short private business venture for 
2 years, I began my electric utility career in 1985 with the Kentucky Utilities Company as 
a Customer Services and Marketing Advisar. 

In April 1991, I took a Vice-President of Member Services and Marketing position with 
Inter-County Energy and was named the Cooperative’s PresidentKEO on May 1 , 1999. 
Of my 21 years of electric utility experience, the last 15 years have been at Inter-County 
Energy. I am also a graduate of the NRECA Management Internship Program held at the 
University of Nebraska in Lincoln, Nebraska and the NRECA CEO Leadership 
Laboratory held at the 1-Jniversity of Wisconsin in Madison, Wisconsin. 

Mi-. Jacobus, are you familiar with the contents of the Notice Application of Inter-County 
Energy which has been filed with this Comnission to commence this Case? 

Yes. 



Exhi bit H-1 
Page 2 of 3 

Q6. Please state whether the statements of facts contained in the Notice are true. 

A6. Yes. To the best of my knowledge and belief, the statements of facts contained in this 
application are true. 

Q7. Mi-. Jacobus, are you familiar with the exhibits which are filed with and forrn a part of the 
Notice Application of this Case? 

A7. Yes. I worked with Alan Zixnstein, CPA, Jim Adkins and with Vickie Lay, Inter-County 
Energy’s Vice President, Finance & Accounting in the preparation of these exhibits, and I 
am familiar with them. And in my opinion, the factual material contained in these is 
correct. 

Q8. When was the last General Rate Application filed by Inter-County Energy? 

AS. Inter-County Energy’s last general rate increase was an Order with this Comnission on 
July 28, 1986 in Case No. 9436. 

Q9. What is the purpose of this Notice Application of Inter-County Energy to this 
Commission? 

A9. To seek an increase in its rates in an amount necessary to obtain a TIER of 2.0. 

QlO. What considerations were given to increase the rates and charges of Inter-County Energy? 

A10. The joint mortgage agreements require that Inter-County Energy attain a TIER ratio of 
1.25, based on an average of two of the three most current years. The TIER for the Test 
Year, excluding G & T Capital Credits was 0.46. TIER has decreased consistently from 
2.19 in 2001 to 0.51 in 2005. The TIER giving effect to Test Year adjustments without an 
increase in revenues would result in a TIER of only 0.46. 

Q11. What is the Test Year used by Inter-County Energy for its frnancial data compiled to the 
Commission in this Case? 

A1 1. The twelve months ended July 3 1 , 2006 was selected as the Test Year. The Management 
and Board of Directors of Inter-County Energy review the operations and TIER on a 
monthly basis. Noting the steady decline in margins and TIER, the Board of Directors 
authorized an Application be prepared to increase rates and charges sufficient to obtain a 
TIER of 2.0. 

Q12. Do the proposed increase in rates for Inter-County Energy in this Application provide for a 
fair and equitable allocation for the increase? 

A1 2. Total revenue was increased by 12.9 percent, based on normalized revenues. Inter-County 
Energy performed a Cost of Service Study with the assistance of Jim Adkins and designed 
the rate increase based on those results. 
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Q13. In your opinion, are the proposed rates requested in this Application by Inter-Coiuity 
Energy necessary to maintain the financial integrity of the Cooperative? 

A13. Yes. To enable Inter-County Energy to maintain its financial integrity, it is necessary that 
it be permitted to increase its rates as proposed in this Application. 

Q14. Does this conclude your testimony in this Case? 

A14. Yes, it does. 

Mfiant, JAMlES L. JACOBUS, states that the answers given by him to the 
foregoing questions are true and correct to the best of his knowledge and belief. 

J L. J A C O B U ~  

Subscribed and sworn to before me by the &ant, JAMES L. JACOBUS, this 
18-f+ dayof - '&cerv \ber  , 2006. 



COMMONW3ALJTH OF KENRJCKY 

BEFORE THE PLBLIC SERVICE COMM[SSION 

In the Matter of: 

Adjustment of Rates of 
Inter County Energy 
Cooperative Corporation CASE NO. 2006-0041 5 

Q1. 

A l .  

Q2. 

A2. 

Q3. 

A3. 

Q4. 

A4. 

QS. 

A5. 

Q6. 

PREPARED TESTIMONY OF VICKIE LAY 

Would you please state your name, business address and title? 

Vickie Lay, 1009 Hustonville Road, Danville, Kentucky 40422 and the VP, 
Finance and Accounting. 

How long have you been employed by Inter County Energy? 

I have been employed by kiter county Energy for approximately 30 years. 

What is your educational background? 

B.B.A. fiom Eastern Kentucky University with a major in Business 
Administration. 

Did you prepare or assist in the preparation of the financial exhibits for Inter 
County Energy in this Notice Application? 

Yes. 

What considerations were given to increase the rates and charges of Inter 
County Energy. 

The mortgage agreements require that Inter County Energy maintain a TIER 
of above 1.25 based on an average of two of the three most current years. 
The TIER for the Test Year of July 3 1,2006, was 0.37. TIER has decreased 
consistently from a TIER of 1.87 in 2002. The TIER giving effect to 
adjustments without an increase in revenues, as reflected in Exhibit S, page 2 
of 4, would result in a TIER of only 0.40 for the Test Year. 

Would you briefly describe the procedures used to arrive at the proposed 
increase in rates and charges. 



A6. 

Q7. 

A7. 

Q8. 

A8. 

Q9. 

A9. 

QlO. 

A10. 

Based on a review of Inter County Energy’s trend toward declining margins 
and tlie need for continued investment growth, it was determined that Inter 
County Energy should seek a rate increase. The twelve months ended July 
3 1,2006 was selected as the test year. Revenues and expenses were normalized 
for known and measurable events. Inter County Energy determines that it 
would need a revenue increase of $3,991,675 or approximately 15% to provide 
a 2 . 0 ~  TIER. 

How was the proposed increase in revenues of $3,991,675 allocated to rates? 

Inter County Energy and James Adkins have prepared a Cost of Service 
Study and based its rate design on this study. 

Why was a TIER of 2 . 0 ~  requested? 

The financial condition of Inter County Energy has deteriorated substantially 
since 2002. In order to continue to meet debt service obligations, operating 
costs and maintain the minimum joint mortgage agreement requirements, it is 
necessary to request a TIER of 2 . 0 ~  in this Application. 

In your opinion, are the adjusted rates requested in this Case by Inter County 
Energy necessary to maintain the financial integrity of the Cooperative? 

The financial exhibits as shown in the application conclusively indicate the 
adjusted rates arising out of the Application for Rate Adjustment are necessary 
to prevent problems of a deteriorating financial position. 

Does this conclude your testimony in this case? 

Yes, it does. 

Affiant, V T C m  LAY, states that the answers given by her to the 
foregoing questions are true and correct to the best of her knowledge and 
belief. 

VICKIELAY / 

Subscribed and sworn to before me by the affiant, VICKIE LAY, 
this \ % f h  day of December, 2006. 

- 
My Commission expires J ” \ V  15; J o o q  .-- 

a 
Nota& Public, State ofkentucky at Large 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

21 

28 

29 

30 

31 

32 

33 

34 

35 

36 

37 

38 

39 

40 

41 

42 

43 

44 

45 

COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY 

BEFORE THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

In the Matter of: 

Adjustment of Rates of 
Inter County Energy 
Cooperative Corporation 

1 CASE NO. 

1 
1 2006-004 15 

PREPARED TESTIMONY OF ALAN M. ZUMSTEIN 

Q1. 

AI. 

Q2. 

A2. 

Q3. 

A3. 

Q4. 

A4. 

Q5. 

A5. 

Q6. 

Would you please state your name, residence and occupation. 

Alan M. Zumstein, Lexington, Kentucky. I am a self-employed Certified 
Public Accountant. My address is 1032 Chetford Drive, L,exington, Kentucky 
40509. 

How long have you been practicing your profession? 

I have been self-employed for approximately twenty-two years. Prior to that, 
I was employed by a local CPA firm for approximately six years. 

Are you familiar with accounting work and accounting procedures for rural 
electric cooperatives. 

Yes. I have had much prior experience in electric cooperative accounting 
and have done accounting work in the preparation of rate cases for electric 
cooperatives for presentation to the Public Service Commission. 

Have you appeared before the Kentucky Public Service Commission and 
given testimony in electric cooperative cases? 

Yes, I have. 

Did you prepare or assist in the preparation of the financial exhibits for Inter 
County Energy filed with its Notice Application in this case? 

Yes. 

What considerations were given to increase the rates and charges of Inter 
County Energy. 
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A6. 

Q7. 

A7. 

QS. 

A8. 

Q9. 

A9. 

The mortgage agreements require that Inter County Energy maintain a 
TIER of above 1.25 based on an average of two of the three most current 
years. The TIER for the Test Year of July 3 1 , 2006, was 0.37. TIER 
has decreased consistently from a TIER of 1.87 in 2002. The TIER giving 
effect to adjustments without an increase in revenues, as reff ected in Exhibit S, 
page 2 of 4, would result in a TIER of only 0.40 for the Test Year. 

Would you briefly describe the procedures used to arrive at the proposed 
increase in rates and charges. 

A twelve months rolling TIER was reviewed by Inter County Energy, and 
giving effect to the steady decline in the TIER, it was determined that an 
application for increase in rates should be filed with the Public Service 
Commission. The twelve months ended July 3 1 , 2006 was selected as 
as Test Year. 

All revenues were normalized using rates that went into effect in co'nnection 
with a flow through of East Kentucky Power Cooperative's increase in rates 
effective May 24,2005. 

Other expenses were normalized using rates and known changes, and adjusted 
as if they were in effect for the entire Test Year. 

The revenue proposed of $3,991,675, or 13% increase, would provide for a 
TIER of 2.0. 

How was the proposed increase in revenues of $3,991,675 allocated to rates? 

Inter County Energy and James Adkins have prepared a Cost of Service 
Study and based its rate design on this study. 

Why was a TIER of 2.0 requested? 

The financial condition of Inter County Energy has deteriorated substantially 
since 2002. In order to continue to meet debt service obligations, operating 
costs and maintain the minimum joint mortgage agreement requirements, it is 
necessary to request a TIER of 2.0 in this Application. 

Q 10. In your opinion, are the adjusted rates requested in this Case by Inter County 
Energy necessary to maintain the financial integrity of the Cooperative? 
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A10 

Q11 

A1 1. 

The financial exhibits as shown in the application conclusively indicate the 
adjusted rates arising out of the Application for Rate Adjustment are necessary 
to prevent problems of a deteriorating financial position. 

Does this conclude your testimony in this case? 

Yes, it does. 

Affiant, ALAN M. ZUMSTEIN, states that the answers given by him 
to the foregoing questions are true and correct to the best of his 
knowledge and belief. 

Alan M. Zumstein J 

Subscribed and sworn to before me by the affiant, ALAN M. ZIJMSTEJN, 
this SLday of December, 2006. 

My Comrnission expires I) Z-bT 

Notary Public, State of Kentucky at Large 
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COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY 
BEFORE THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

In the Matter of 

Adjustment of Rates of 
Int,er-County Energy 
Cooperative Corporation 

Q. 

A 

Q. 

A 

Q. 

A. 

PREPARED TESTIMONY OF JAMES R. ADKINS 

CASE NO 
2006-0041 5 

Please state your name, your business address and job position? 

My name is James R. Adkins. My business address is 1041 Chasewood 
Way, Lexington, KY 40513-1731. I am self-employed providing services 
to electric cooperatives in the areas of rates, rate design, cost of service 
studies, regulatory affairs, financial forecasting and other services. 

What is your education background and business experience? 

I am a graduate of the University of Kentucky with a Bachelors Degree in 
Commerce with a major in banking and finance granted in 1971 and a Masters 
of Science Degree in Accounting granted in 1976. My business experience for 
the last twenty-eight years has been with the electric utility industry and primarily 
with the rural electric cooperatives. I spent almost twenty-five years with East 
Kentucky Power Cooperative, lnc. (I'EKPC'') dealing with rates, regulatory affairs, 
cost of service studies, and helping its member distribution systems with their 
rate matters. I took an early retirement from EKPC in early 2002 due to health 
reasons. Since then I spent time providing consulting services to electric 
cooperatives and others. I was member of the Prime Group from early 2002 
through the first quarter of 2003 providing assistance in the rate area to 
cooperatives in this area of the country. I have been self-employed since 
the first quarter of 2003. 

Have you ever provided testimony before t.he Kentucky Public Service 
Commission ("Commission")? 

I have provided testimony many times before this Commission for EKPC and 
its member distribution cooperatives in rate application proceedings for revenue 
requirement purposes, cost of service studies, rate design, and other special 
types of rates including cogeneration rates, economic development rates, etc. 

44 I have also provided testimony in fuel adjust,ment cases and administrative cases. 
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Q. What has been your role in this rate application ? 

A. My role in this rate application has been to provide assistance to Inter-County 
Energy Cooperative in its preparation and filing with this Commission. I have 
developed and completed the Cost of Service Study ('lC0SS'') filed as a 
part of this application. I am also responsible for the rate designed proposed 
in this rate application. 

Q Are you responsible for the Cost of Service Study filed in this rate application? 

A I am responsible for the Cost of Service Study (ICOSS'l) in this application. 
This COSS is consistent with the 1993 NARUC Electric Utilitv Cost Allocation 
Manual and is based on a methodology generally accepted within the industry. 
The results of this study indicate that the Rate Schedules I, I-A, 8-1 and 6 
are not providing revenue sufficient to meet the revenue requirements for those rate 
classes. The COSS also indicates that the rates for some of the other rate classes 
are providing revenues in excess of their revenue requirements. Since several rate 
schedules are not producing sufficient revenue, these classes are the only ones 
where are rates are being increased. The amount of increase allocated to 
Schedule 1 will provide revenue slightly less than full revenue requirements. 
The increase for Schedule B-I  is not very significant but this increase will bring it to 
full revenue requirements for this class. The increases for Schedule 6 will bring 
this rate class to full revenue requirements. 

Q What rate design changes are being proposed in this rate application? 

A. One change in rate designed is being proposed in this rate application. For 
Schedule 1, the two step energy rate is being combined into a one step energy 
rate. Additionally for Schedule I, the customer charge is being increased to 
$8.00 per month and the remaining increase has been allocated to the energy 
rate. For Schedule I-A, the energy rate is now set at sixty percent (6OOh) of the 
the energy rate while in the past it had been sixty percent (6Oy0) of the second 
step of the energy rate. 

For Schedule B-I,  the energy rate has been increased leaving the demand rates 
at their current amounts. All lighting rates in Schedule 6 are being increased 
by the same percentage amount. 

1. What is the end result of this COSS and the proposed rate design? 

A. The end result of the COSS and proposed rate design is a better allocation of 
costs to serve among the various rate classes, a more even distribution of margins 
requirements from the various rate classes, and a rate design that tracks costs 
in a better manner. 
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3 

4 1 I Q. Does this conclude your testimony? 

6 A. This concludes my testimony. 
5 

7 

8 

9 
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11 belief. 

Affiant, James R. Adkins, states that the answers given by him to the 
foregoing questions are true and correct to the best of his knowledge and 
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20 

22 MY Commission expires S u \ q  \ 5 ,  (;I 00 ct . 

Suscribed and sworn to before me by the affiant, JAMES R. ADKINS, 
this \%* day of December, 2006. 
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27 

28 

L*& H AAha 
Nota4 Public, State of Kentucky at Large 
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Inter County Energy Cooperative 
Case No. 2006-004 15 

Effect on Average Bill 
July 3 1 , 2006 

Schedule 1. Farm and Home 

Customer charge 
First 500 kwh per month 
A11 over 500 kwh per month 

kw1i Useage 

0 
25 
50 

100 
200 
300 
400 
500 
600 
700 
800 
900 

1,000 
1,100 
1,200 
1,300 
1,400 
1,500 
1,600 
1,700 
1,800 
1,900 
2,000 

1,244 

The average monthly kwh useage is 

Present 
$5.55 

$0.06900 
$0.06366 

Existing 
Rate 

$5.55 
7.28 
9.00 

12.45 
19.35 
26.25 
33.15 
40.05 
46.42 
52.78 
59.1 S 
65.51 
71.88 
78.25 
84.61 
90.98 
97.34 

103.71 
11 0.08 
1 16.44 
122.8 1 
129.17 
135.54 

87.44 

Proposed 
$8.00 

$0.0744 5 
$0.07445 

Proposed 
Rate 

$8.00 
9.86 

11.72 
15.45 
22.89 
30.34 
37.78 
45.23 
52.67 
60. I2  
67.56 
75.01 
82.45 
89.90 
97.34 

104.79 
112.23 
119.68 
127.12 
134.57 
142.01 
149.46 
156.90 

100.65 

L244 
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Increase 
Amount 

$2.45 
2.59 
2.72 
2.99 
3.54 
4.08 
4.63 
5.18 
6.25 
7.33 
8.41 
9.49 

10.57 
11.65 
12.73 
13.81 
14.89 
15.96 
17.04 
18.12 
19.20 
20.28 
21.36 

13.21 

Percent 

44.1 % 
35.5% 
30.3% 
24.1 Yo 
18.3% 
15.6% 
14.0% 
12.9% 
13.5% 
13.9% 
14.2% 
14.5% 
14.7% 
14.9% 
15.0% 
15.2% 
15.3% 
15.4% 
15.5% 
15.6% 
15.6% 
15.7% 
15.8% 

15.1% 
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21 
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h t  er County Energy Cooperative 
Case No. 2006-0041 5 

Effect on Average Bill 
July 3 1 , 2006 

Schedule 2, Small Commercial and SmaIl Power 

Customer charge 
Demand charge 
First 1,000 kwh per month 
All over 1,000 kwh per month 

Average kwh useage 
Average demand useage 

Average useage 

Schedule 4. LarEe Power Rate 

Customer charge 
Demand charge 
All kwh per month 

Average kwh useage 
Average demand useage 

Average useage 

Schedule 5, All Electric Schools 

Customer charge 
Energy charge 

Average kwh useage 

Average useage 

Present Proposed 
$5.55 $5.55 
$4.02 $4.02 

$0.07825 $0.06897 
$0.06576 $0.06897 

Existing Proposed 
Rate Rate 

$22 1.68 $221.68 

Exhibit I 
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Increase 
Amount Percent 

($0.00) -0.0% 

Present Proposed 
$1 1.10 $11.10 

$4.02 $4.02 
$0.05655 $0.05655 

18.440 
23 

Existing Proposed 
Rate Rate 

$1,348.76 $1,348.76 

Present Proposed 
$0.00 $0.00 

$0.05884 $0.05884 

Existing Proposed 
Rate Rate 

$3,328.4.5 $3,328.45 

Increase 
Amount Percent 

$0.00 0.0% 

Increase 
Amount Percent 

$0.00 0.0% 
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Inter County Energy Cooperative 
Case No. 2006-004 15 
Effect on Average Bill 

July 3 1,2006 

Schedule Ind B1, Larce Industrial Rate 

Metering charge $535.00 
Demand charge 

Contract demand $5.39 
Excess demand $7.82 

Interuptible discount ($3.15) 
Energy charge $0.03532 

Present 

Average kwh useage 
Average demand useage 
Average excess contract demand 

Existing 
Rate 

Average useage $17,906.71 

Schedule Ind Cl? Larce Industrial Rate 

Metering charge $535.00 

Energy charge $0.03565 

Present 

Demand charge $5.39 

Average kwh useage 
Average demand useage 

Average useage 

Proposed 
$535.00 

$5.39 
$7.82 

($3.15) 
$0.03648 

Proposed 
Rate 

$1 8,345.17 

Proposed 
$535.00 

$5.39 
$0.03565 
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Increase 
Amount Percent 

$43 8.46 2.4% 

Existing Proposed Increase 
Rate Rate Amount Percent 

$72,993.5 1 $72,993.5 1 $0.00 0.0% 
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Inter County Energy Cooperative 

Case No. 2006-00415 
Computation of Rate of Return 

July 3 1 , 2006 

Actual 
Test Year 

Adjusted 
Test Year 

Net margins 

Non-cash patronage dividends 

Interest on long-term debt 

Total 

Net rate base 

Rate of return 

Equity Capitalization 

Rate of return 

($1,374,830) $2,492,678 

0 0 

2,165,551 2,492,678 

790,72 1 4,985,356 

67,620,783 67,626,378 

74,907,523 78,775,03 1 

1.06% 6.33% 
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Witness: Alan Zumstein 
Inter County Energy Cooperative 

Case No. 2006-00415 
Determination of Rate Base 

July 31,2006 

Gross rate base: 

Total electric plant 
Material and supplies 

Prepayments 

Working capital: 

(1 3 months average for test year) 

(1 3 months average for test year) 

12.5% of operating expense 
less cost of power 

Deductions from rate base: 
Accumulated depreciation 
Consumer advances 

Net rate base 

Material 

July 
August 
September 
October 
November 
December 
January 
February 
March 
April 

June 
July 

May 

2005 262,056 
23 1,522 
283,734 
29 1,226 
263,982 
284,47 1 

2006 269,763 
263,6 14 
269,747 
267,956 
259,366 
252,7 15 
327,72 1 

Average 271,375 

Actual 
Test Year 

$82,125,283 
27 1,375 

25 1,983 

875,707 

83,524,347 

15,903,564 
- 

$67,620,783 

Prepayments 

204,843 
1 S9,84 1 
86,341 
31,145 

219,870 
411,165 
425,699 
397,130 
354,432 
311,023 
267,680 
224,953 
18 1,652 

25 1,983 

Adjusted 
Test Year 

$82,229,899 
27 1,375 

25 1,983 

875,707 

83,628,963 

16,002,585 
- 

$67,626,378 
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Witness: Alan Zumstein 
Inter County Energy Cooperative 

Case No. 2006-00415 
TIER and DSC Calculations 

July 3 1,2006 

Actual 
Test Year 

TIER: 

Margins, excluding G&T 

Lnterest on long term debt 
capital credits and extraordinary item! ($1,374,830) 

2,165,55 1 

TIER 0.37 

DSC: 

Margins, excluding G&T 

Depreciation expense 
Interest on long term debt 
Principal payment on 

long term debt 

capital credits 

DSC 

($1,374,830) 
2,540,379 
2,165,55 1 

DSC = (Margins + depreciation + interest 
/ interest + principal payments) 

1,337,634 

0.95 

Adjusted 
Test Year 

$2,492,678 
2,492,678 

2.00 

$2,492,678 
2,643,443 
2,492,678 

1,337,634 

1.99 
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Witness: Alan Zumstein 
Inter County Energy Cooperative 

Case No. 2006-00415 
Reconciliation of Rate Base and Capital 

July 3 1 , 2006 

Reconciliation of Rate Base and Capital used to determine revenue requirements 
are as follows: 

Equity Capitalization, with 
G&T capital credits 

G&T capital credits 

Reconciling items: 
Capital credits from associated organizations 

(Allocated but unpaid) 
Working capital requirements 
Material and supplies, 13 month average 
Prepayments, 13 month average 
Cash and temporary investments 
Accounts receivable 
Other receivables 
Material and supplies 
Prepayments 
Other deferred debits 
Accumulated operating provisions 
Notes payable 
Accounts payable 
Consumer deposits 
Accrued expenses 

74,907,523 

(7,23 1,058) 

67,676,465 

( 1 ) 73 5,5 54) 
875,707 
271,375 
25 1,983 

(1,288,559) 
(3,75 1,452) 

(36,455) 
(327,721) 
(1 81,652) 
(403,743) 

1,619,321 

2,750,089 
395,175 

1,505,805 

Net Rate Base 67,620,783 



-._ 
0. 

m 

UJ 
I- 
d. 
n 
n z 
UJ 

k- 
4. 

z d 
3 
z 

l l  
I 



! , 1  . : ?  

tt 

Jt 

li 

>- 
l.? 'J 
t i  I- 
I l l  2 

i l . 1  c 
c. 

> c. - 4 

J IJ 
1.2 c 
LJ 
I t  

LC rc 
11.1 a 
t- 3 
z c  

-I - ,-. . 

M 

c 

x 

tt 

I i 



Q! 'a QJ e 

%- .." 
a 

RI 



a 
I- 

\tT 

L, 
IJJ I- 
L7 II 
a:U 
a c9 

n 
i t  

i e  

N r 



e, Q, 
nYll - 

l F "  . h l _  

1 1  
I I I I I I I I 

i 



4 

IC 

It 

IC 

Y 

c 

a 
n 
?? 
N 

u) 
+ e  

z. 
3 

.o rJ 
0 UJ U 



._ 

U 
\ru 
" .< 





K 

ff 

* 

L LJ 

c?o 
P O  m *  
0 0  
m 61 

. .  
0'0. c- 



Kentucky 27 
Inter County Energy 

Cooperative Corporation 
Danville, Kentucky 

Report on Audits of Financial Statements 
for the years ended December 31,2005 and 2004 



C O N T E N T S  

Independent Auditor's Report 

Report on Compliance and Internal Controls 

Over Financial Reporting 

Financial Statements: 

Balance Sheets 

Statements of Revenue and Patronage Capital 

Statements of Cash Flows 

Notes to Financial Statements 
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4 
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CERTIFIED P'IJBLIC ACCOUNTANT 

1032 CHETFORD DRIVE 
LEXINGTON, KENTUCKY 40509 
(8.59) 264-7 147 

MEMBER: 
AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF CPA'S 
INDIANA SOCIETY OF CPA'S 
KENTUCKY SOCIETY OF CPA'S 
AICPA DIVISION FOR FIRMS 

Board of Directors 
Inter County Energy Cooperative 
Danville, Kentucky 40423 

Independent Auditor's ReporZ. 

I have audited the balance sheets of Inter County Energy Cooperative, as of December 3 1,  
2005 and 2004, and the related statements income and patronage capital and cash flows for the 
years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of Inter County Energy 
Cooperative's management. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial 
statements based on my audits. 

I conducted my audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America, the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States and 7 CFR Part 1773, Policy 
on Audits of Rural 1-Jtilities Service (RUS) Borrowers. Those standards require that I plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free 
from material misstatement. An audit includes examining on a test basis, evidence supporting the 
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit includes assessing the accounting 
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
financial statement presentation. I believe that my audits provide a reasonable basis for my 
opinion 

In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position of Inter County Energy Cooperative as of December 3 1,2005 and 2004, 
and the results of operations and cash flows for the years then ended, in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, I have also issued a report dated March 23, 
2006, on my consideration of Inter County Energy Cooperative's internal control over financial 
reporting and my tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and 
grants. That report is an integral part of an audit perfoimed in accordance with Government 
Auditing Standards and should be read in conjunction with this report in considering the results 
of my audit. f 

Alan M Zumstein 
March 23. 2006 



1032 CHETFORD DRIVE 
LEXINGTON, KENTUCKY 40509 
(859) 264-7147 

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOIJNTANT 

MEMBER: 
AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF CPA'S 
INDIANA SOCIETY OF CPA'S 
KENTUCKY SOCIETY OF CPA'S 
AICPA DIVISION FOR FIRMS 

Board of Directors 
Inter County Energy Cooperative 
Danville, Kentucky 40423 

I have audited the financial Statements of Inter County Energy Cooperative as of and for the 
years ended December 3 1,2005 and 2004, and have issued my report thereon dated March 23, 
2006. I conducted my audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. 

Compliance 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Inter County Energy Cooperative's 
financial statements are free of material misstatement, I performed tests of its compliance with 
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could 
have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, 
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of my audit and, 
accordingly, I do not express such an opinion. The results of my tests disclosed no instances of 
noncompliance that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing my audit, J considered Inter County Energy Cooperative 
Corporation's internal control over financial reporting in  order to determine my auditing 
procedures for the purpose of expressing my opinion on the financial statements and not to 
provide assurance on the internal control over financial reporting. My consideration of the 
internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal 
control over financial reporting that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a 
condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the intemal control components 
does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatement in amounts that would be 
material in relation to the financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected within 
a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. I 
noted no matters involving the internal control over financial reporting and its operation that I 
consider to be material weaknesses. 

This report is intended for the information of the audit committee, management, the Rural 
Utilities Service and supplemental lenders and is not intended to be and should not be used 
by anyone other than th se s ecified parties. Y P  

ZL-qfL 
Alan M. Zumstein 
March 23, 2006 



Inter County Energy Cooperative Corporation 

Balance Sheets, December 3 1 , 2005 and 2004 

3 Assets 2005 

Electric Plant, at original cost: 
In service 
'CJnder construction 

Less accumulated depreciation 

$79,439,871 
393,421 

79,833,292 
14.920.643 
64,9 12,649 

Investments in associated organizations 8 , 9 5 2,2.8 4 

Current Assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents 906,659 
Accounts receivable, less allowance for 

4,778,739 
Material and supplies, at average cost 284,471 
Prepayments 422,242 

6,392,111 

2005 of $52,244 and 2004 of $45,084 

Total 

Members' Equities and Liabilities 

Members' Equities : 
Memberships 
Patronage capital 
Other equities 

Long Term Debt 

Accumulated Postretirement Benefits 

$80,257,044 

2004 

$69,773,216 
3,743,219 

73,s 16,435 
14,242,099 
59,274,336 

9,407,903 

4 5 9,267 

3,602,861 
2 10,433 
453.050 

4,725,6 1 1 

$73,407,850 

$9 62., 090 $938,385 
23,707,840 24,744,953 

54,188 .52,4_52 
24,724,118 25,735,790 

43,832,876 38,073,809 

1 ,.S72,521 1,479,904 

Current Liabilities: 
Accounts payable 3,347,997 2,877,641 
Notes payable 4,O 0 0,0 0 0 2,650,000 
Current portion of long term debt 1,500,000 1,400,000 
Consumer deposits 390,595 368,408 
Other current and accrued expenses 888,937 822,298 

8,l 18,347 -________ 10,127,529 

Total $80,257,044 $7 3,4 0 7,8535 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 



Statements of Revenue and Patronage Capital 

for the years ended December 3 1,2005 and 2004 

2005 

- Operating Revenues 

Operating Expenses: 
Cost of power 
Distribution - operations 
Distribution - maintenance 
Consumer accounts 
Customer service 
Administrative and general 
Depreciation, excluding $2 18,97 1 in 2005 

and $190,211 in 2004 charged to 
clearing accounts 

Taxes 
Other deductions 

Operating Margins before Interest Charges 

$34,637,170 

24,176,063 
1,755,645 
1,258,785 
1,5 1638 1 

495,924 
1,650,699 

2,402,650 
32,450 
37,104 

33,325,901 
1,3 1 1,269 

Interest Charges : 
Interest on long term debt 1,711,137 
Other interest charges 193,836 

‘“3 1,904,973 

Operating Margins after Interest Charges 

Patronage Capital assigned from: 
East Kentucky Power Cooperative, Inc. 
Other organizations 

Net Operating Margins 

Nonoperating Margins: 
Interest income 
Gain on sale of general plant and others 

(593,704) 

- 
72,527 
72,527 

(521 , 177) 

66,062 
(380,5 1 1 )  
(3 14,449) 

$29.045.8 13 

19,229,243 
1,635,030 
1,151,228 
1,356,185 

4S8,73 1 
1,394,6 I9 

2,20 1 , I  93 
3 1,734 
76,184 

27,534,147 
1,5 1 1,666 

1,183,924 
48,629 

1,232,553 

279,l I3 

35,784 
3 5,784 

3 14,897 

97,680 
29,799 

12.7,479 

Net Margins ( 8 3 S,6 2.6) 442,,376 

Patronage Capital - beginning of year 24,744,953 2.4,52 1,458 

Retirements to estates of deceased members (201,487) (2 I8,88 1 )  

Patronage Capital - end of year $23,707,840 $24,744,953 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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Statements of Cash Flows 

for the years ended December 3 1,2005 and 2004 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities: 
Net margins 
Adjustments to reconcile to net cash provided 

by operating activities: 

Charged to expense 
Charged to clearing accounts 

Patronage capital credits 
Accumulated postretirement benefits 
Change in assets and liabilities: 

Depreciation 

Receivables 
Material and supplies 
Prepayments 
Payables 
Consumer deposits 
Accrued expenses 

($835,626) 

2,402,650 
21 8,971 
(72,527) 
92.,6 1 7 

(1 , I  75,878) 
(74,038) 
30,808 

470,356 
22,187 
66,639 

I 1.146.1 59 

$44 2,3 7 6 

2,201,193 
190,211 
(3 5,7 84) 
139,373 

(153,052) 
17,926 

(200,488) 
68 1,205 
22,350 
34,832 

3,340,142 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities: 
Plant additions (8,332,163) (8,147,340) 
Salvage recovered from plant retired 72,229 70,001 
Receipts from associated orgariizations 528,146 (1 5,498) 

(8,O 92,8 3 7) (7,73 1,788) 

Cash Flows from Financing Activities: 
Net increase in memberships 
Payments to estates of deceased members 
Other equities 
Notes payable 
Additional long term borrowings 
Payments on long term debt 
Cushion of credit payment 
Marketing loans 

23,705 
(20 1,487) 

1,736 
1,3.50,000 
6,786,000 

(1,371,179) 
479,6 1 8 
(3 5,372) 

7,033,021 

23,685 
(218,881) 

4,930 
2,650,000 
3,500,000 

(1,357,336) 
(26,5 54) 
(1 2,079) 

4,563,765 

Net increase in cash 447,392 (1 88,930) 

Cash balances - beginning of period 459,267 648,197 - 

Cash balances - end of period 

Supplemental cash flows information: 
Interest paid on long term debt 

$906,659 $459,267 

$1,709,840 $1,162,735 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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Notes to Financial Statements 

-3 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Inter County maintains its records in accordance with policies prescribed or permitted by 
the Kentucky Public Service Commission (PSC) and the United States Department of 
Agriculture, Rural Utilities Service (RUS), which conform in all material respects with 
generally accepted accounting principles. The more significant of these policies are as 
follows: 

Electric Plant 

Electric plant is stated at original cost, less contributions, which is the cost when first 
dedicated to public service. Such cost includes applicable supervisory and overhead 
costs. There was 110 interest required to be capitalized on construction for the year. 

The cost of maintenance and repairs, including renewals of minor items of property, is 
charged to operating expense. The cost of replacernent of depreciable property units, as 
distinguished from minor items, is charged to electric plant. The cost of units of property 
replaced or retired, including cost of removal net of any salvage value, is charged to 
accumulated depreciation. The major classifications of electric plant in service were: 

Distribution plant $68,3 15,O 16 $64,377,390 
General plant 

Total 

11,124,855 5,395,826 

$79,439,87 1 $69,773,216 

Depreciation 

Provision has been made for depreciation on the basis of the estimated lives of assets, 
using the straight-line method. Distribution plant depreciation is based on a composite rate 
of 3.35% per annum. Depreciation rates are as follows: 

Structures and improvements 
Transportation equipment 
Other general plant 

Statement of Cash Flows 

2% 
15% - 18% 
6% - 13% 

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, Inter County considers temporary investments 
having a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. 

Continued 
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Notes to Financial Statements, continued 

2 1. 
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued 

Rev en u e 

Inter County records revenues from its CoIisurners based on monthly meter reading 
cycles. Inter County's sales are concentrated in a six county area of south central 
Kentucky. Consumers are billed on credit, with some consumers required to pay a 
rehndable deposit. There were no consumers whose individual account balance 
exceeded 10% of outstanding accounts receivable at December 3 1 , 2005 or 2004. The 
allowance for uncollectible accounts is based on the aging of receivables. Accounts are 
written off when they are deemed to be uncollectible. 

Cost of Power 

Cost of power is recorded in the period used, based upon billings by East Kentucky Power 
Cooperative Corporation (East Kentucky). TJnder its wholesale power agreement, Inter 
County is committed to purchase its electrical power and energy requirements from East 
Kentucky until 2018. The rates are subject to approval by the PSC. 

Fair Value of Financial Instruments 

Financial instruments include cash, temporary investments and long term debt. Investments 
in associated organizations are not considered a financial instrument because they 
represent nontransferable interests in associated organizations. 

The carrying value of cash and temporary investments approximates fair value because of 
the short maturity of those instruments. 

Estimates 

The financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles 
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts 
of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the 
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the 
reporting period. Actual results could differ fi-om those estimates used in the preparation 
of the financial statements. 

Off Balance Sheet Risk 

Inter County has off-balance sheet risk in that they maintain cash deposits in financial 
institutions in excess of the amounts insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance 
Corporation (FDIC). 

Continued 
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Notes to Financial Statements, continued 

Investments 

The Capital Term Certificates (CTCs) of National Rural Utilities Cooperative Finance 
Corporation (NRUCFC) are recorded at cost. The CTCs were purchased fiom NRTJCFC 
as a condition of obtaining long-term financing. The CTCs bear interest at 0%, 3% and 
5%, and are scheduled to mature at varying times from 2020 to 2080. 

Inter County records patronage capital assigned by associated organizations in the year in 
which such assignments are received. 

Investments in associated organizations and other consisted of: 

2005 2004 
Associated organizations: 
East Kentucky Power Cooperative, Inc.: 

National Rural Utilities Cooperative 
Patronage capital assigned 

Finance Corporation: 
Patronage capital assigned 
Capital Term Certificates, at cost 

Other associated organizations 
U.S. Treasury Notes, at cost, which 

approximates market 

Total 

“4 

$7,23 1,058 $7,23 1,058 

185,738 189,499 
97 1,269 972,976 
564,219 1,009,035 

5,335 

$8,952,284 $9,407,903 

3. Patronage Capital 

Patronage capital consisted of 
2005 2004 

Assigned to date 
Assignable 
IJnassigned 
Retirements to date 

Total 

$28,180,391 $2.7,738,014 
(8 3 5,626) 442,376 
150,817 150,8 17 

(3,787,742) (3,5 8 6,254) 

$23,707,840 $24,744,953 

Under provisions of the long-term debt agreement, return to patrons of capital contributed 
by them is limited to amounts which would not allow the total equities and margins to be 
less than 30% of total assets, except that distributions may be made to estates of deceased 
patrons. The debt agreement provides, however, that should such distributions to estates 
not exceed 2 5% of net margins for the next preceding year, Inter County may distribute 
the difference between 25% and the payments made to such estates. At December 3 1, 
2005, the equities and margins were 3 1% of total assets. 

Con t i nued 
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Notes to Financial Statements, continued 

4. Long Term Debt 1$ 
All assets, except motor vehicles, are pledged as collateral on the long-term debt to RUS 
and NRLJCFC under a joint mortgage agreement. The amounts due East Kentucky are for 
the ERC loans. L,ong term debt consisted of: 

2005 
First mortgage notes due RUS: 

2% $4 1,475 
5 yo 1 O,23 1,63 1 
2.375 & 5.125% (1.125 & 5.125% in 2004) 4,730,178 
Cushion of credit (46,73 8) 

14,956,546 

First mortgage notes due FFB: 
3.566 - 4.058% (2.222 - 2.615% in 2004) 23,455,622 

First mortgage notes due NRUCFC: 
7% 1 1 1,273 
5.85% - 6.50% (4.20% in 2004) 6,734,977 

6,846,250 

Due East Kentucky, 4.2% various 5 years 74,458 

45,332,876 
Less current portion 1,500,000 

$43,832,876 

2004 

$88,911 
10,783,103 
4,835,234 
( 5  2 6,s 54) 

15,180,694 

17,055,769 

147,988 
6,979,528 
7,127,s 16 

109,830 

39,473,809 
1,400,000 

$3 8,073,809 

The variable rate loans are subject to change monthly. Fixed rate loans may be converted 
to variable upon paying a conversion fee. 

The long term debt payable to RIJS and NRUCFC is due in quarterly and monthly 
installments of varying amounts through 2028. Inter County had no loan funds available at 
December 3 1, 2005. Inter County has unadvanced loan funds available from FFB in the 
amount of $6,80S,000 and from RUS in the amount of $20,709,000. 

As of December 3 1, 2005, the annual current portion of long term debt outstanding for the 
next five years are as follows: 2006 - $1,600,000; 2007 - $ I  ,700,000; 2008 - $1,800,000; 
2009 - $1,900,000; 20 10 - $2,000,000. 

5.  Note Payable 

At December 3 1, 2005, Inter County had a short term line of credit of $5,000,000 available 
from NRIJCFC. Inter County has advances against this line of credit at December 3 1 ,  
2.00.5 in the amount of $4,000,000 at in interest rate of 6.10%. 

Continued 
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Notes to Financial Statements, continued 

Related Party Transactions 

Several of the Directors of Inter County, its General Manager and another employee are 
011 the board of directors of various associated organizations. 

7. Accumulated Postretirement Benefits 

Inter County sponsors a defined benefit plan that provides rnedical insurance coverage to 
retirees and their dependents. Participating retirees and dependents do not contribute to 
the projected cost of coverage. For purposes of the liability estimates, the substantive plan 
is assumed to be the same as the extant written plan. Postretirement benefits are not funded. 

The following is a reconciliation of the postretirement benefit obligation: 

2005 
Postretirement benefit obligation: 

Balance, beginning of period $1,479,904 

Recognition of components of net 
periodic postretirement benefit cost: 

Service cost 67,200 
Interest cost 160,800 
Amortization of gains or losses 36,000 

264,000 
Benefits paid to participants (171,383) 

Net periodic benefit cost $1,572,521 

The hnding status of the plan is as follows: 
2005 

Accumulated postretirement benefit obligation: 
Active plan participants $1,430,000 
Retirees and dependents 985,000 

2,415,000 

( 8 42. ,4 7 9) 
Unrecognized net gain from changes 

in assumptions 

Accrued postretirement benefit cost $1,572,52 1 

2004 

$1,340,531 

64,000 
152,000 
36,000 

252,000 
(1 12,627) 

$1,479,904 

2004 

$I  ,269,000 
1,03 1,000 
2,300,000 

(820.096) 

$1,479,904 

For measurement purposes, a 7.0% annual rate of increase, decreasing by 0.5% per year 
until leveling at 5.5%, in the per capita cost of covered health care benefits was assumed 
The discount rate used in determining the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation 
was 7 0% in 2005 and 2004. 

Continued 
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Notes to Financial Statements, continued 

8. Pension Plan 

All eligible employees of Inter Count participate in the NRECA Retirement and Security 
Program, a defined benefit pension plan qualified under section 401 and tax-exempt under 
section 501 (a) of the Internal Revenue Code. Inter County makes annual contributions to 
the Program equal to the amounts accrued for pension expense. In this multiemployer 
plan, which is available to all member cooperatives of NRECA, the accumulated benefits 
and plan assets are not determined or allocated separately by individual employer. 
Contributions were $349,722 for 200.5 and $327,238 for 2,004. 

9. Commitments and Contingencies 

Electric power sold by Inter County is purchased fiom East Kentucky. The membership 
of East Kentucky is comprised of Inter County and 16 other distribution cooperatives. 

Inter County is contingently liable as guarantor for approximately $401,000 of long term 
obligations of East Kentucky to RLJS, NRUCFC and institutional investors. Substantially all 
assets of Inter County are pledged as collateral for this guarantee, in addition to the pledge 
in the mortgage agreement referred to in Note 4. This contingent liability was part of an 
overall financing plan for the construction of generating facility near Maysville, Kentucky. 

Inter County also has various agreements outstanding with local contractors. LJnder these 
agreements, the contractors will read meters and perform certain construction and 
maintenance work at specified hourly rates or unit cost, or on an as needed basis. The 
duration of these contracts are one to three years. 

3 

10. Advertising 

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Advertising costs were $44,263 for 2005 
and $53,154 for 2004. 

11. Risk Management 

Inter County is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and 
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. 

Inter County carries commercial insurance for all risks of loss, including workers' 
compensation, general liability and property loss insurance. As is customary in the utility 
industry, Utility Plant is not insured. Settled claims resulting from these risks have not 
exceeded commercial insurance coverage in 2005 or 2004. 

12. Income Tas Status 

Inter County is exempt from federal and state income taxes under provisions of Section 
50 1 (c)( 12)" Accordingly, the financial statements include no provisions for income taxes. 

1 1  
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Witness: Alan Zumstein 
Inter County Energy Cooperative 
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io  Computer Software Programs 
1 1  
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13 

Inter County Energy Electric has used Microsoft Excel and Word 
in the preparation of this Applciation. 
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